FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

9ROUND FRANCHISING, LLC

A South Carolina limited liability company
847 NE Main Street

Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681

KICKBOXING FITNESS FDD@9Round.com
Direct Line: (864) 962-4600

www.9Round.com

facebook.com/9roundofficial

instagram.com/9roundofficial

twatterx.com/9round

youtube.com/9roundtv

linkedin.com/company/9-round-bexingliekboxingfitness

You will operate a fitness center that offers instructional staffed and unstaffed services for twenty-four (24)
hours a day throughout the year, subject to legal requirements, featuring a specialized program that is
developed around a system of nine (9) challenging circuit training stations, that incorporates boxing and
kickboxing exercises, and that includes personal trainer assistance and nutrition services.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a new 9ROUND® unit offering is $+36:549:00149.449
to $396416,300.69- This includes $46;500-0044,750 to $66;460-0056.250 that must be paid to the franchisor
or an affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive
this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any
payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that
no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure
document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact: Shannon Hudson, 847 NE Main Street,
Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681, (864) 962-4600.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make
up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which
can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade
Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-help or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 36;-2602415, 2025



How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs,
profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this
information from others, like current and former franchisees.
You can find their names and contact information in Item 20
or Exhibit D.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor
or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the initial
investment to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you
must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit B includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
9Round business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a 9Round
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit D lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should look for.
Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this franchise opportunity.
See the table of contents.




What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are
losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals and
business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments in
your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of
suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could buy
on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business
during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include
controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of
operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may
have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign a
new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise business.

When vour franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business
after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before offering or
selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the franchise or has
verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to
contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise
agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location
of the State Specific Addenda.



Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve

disputes with the franchisor by mediation or litigation only in South Carolina. Out-of-state
mediation or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It
may also cost more to mediate or litigate with the franchisor in South Carolina than in your
own state.

2. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make mandatory minimum royalty payments
or advertising contributions regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make these
payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

3. Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable for
all financial obligations under the Franchise Agreement, even if your spouse has no
ownership interest in the franchise. This Guarantee will place both your and your spouse’s
marital and personal assets (perhaps including your house) at risk if your franchise fails.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if any)
to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY
STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT
ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE
VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating
to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall
not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all
claims.

(©) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply
with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given
written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than thirty
(30) days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than
5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to
conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name,
logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration
of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six (6) months advance notice of
franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
section does not require a renewal provision.

6] A provision requiring that litigation be conducted outside this state.

(2) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current
reasonable qualifications or standards.
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(i)  The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(iii)  The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all
lawful obligations.

(iv)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of
the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants
to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign,
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does
not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Michigan Department of
Attorney General, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Section, 525 W. Ottawa Street, G.
Mennen Williams Building, 1 Floor, Lansing, Michigan 48913, telephone (517) 373-7117.

THIS MICHIGAN NOTICE ONLY APPLIES TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE
RESIDENTS OF MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.

9ROUND®
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this disclosure document, “we” or “us” means 9Round Franchising, LLC, the
franchisor. “You” means the person or entity that buys the franchise. If the franchisee is a corporation,
partnership or other entity, the term “you” does not include the franchisee’s owners unless otherwise stated.
Certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement will apply to your owners and will be noted in this disclosure
document.

The Franchisor, its Parent and Affiliates

We are a South Carolina limited liability company formed on December 15, 2008. We currently do business
only under our corporate name and under the trade name “9ROUND”. Our principal business address is 847
NE Main Street, Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681. Our agents for service of process are disclosed in
Exhibit A to this disclosure document. We have no controlling parent company.

We acquired the intellectual property related to the 9ROUND concept from our affiliate, 9Round, LLC
(“9RSC”), upon our inception in 2008. 9RSC maintains its principal business address at 847 NE Main Street
Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681. 9RSC has operated one 9Round gym since 2008. On June 30, 2019,
9RSC sold its 9Round gym to 9Round Franchising, LLC.

Our affiliate, H&S Empire LLC (“H&S”), operated two (2) businesses of the type you will operate since
2013, which were located in Greenville and Simpsonville, South Carolina. H&S shares our principal
business address at 847 NE Main Street, Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681, and has never offered
franchises in any line of business. On June 30, 2019, H&S Empire sold two (2) 9Round gyms to 9Round
Franchising, LLC. We have been offering franchlses of the type described i in this disclosure document smce
Apr112009 & Round-nters : ) ac-hatern

Our subsidiary, 9Round International, LLC (“9Round International”), is a U.S. based South Carolina

limited liability company formed on December 16, 2014 and shares our principal business address is 847
NE Main Street, Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681. 9Round International has a license from us to the
intellectual property related to the 9ROUND concept outside of the U.S. and Canada and currently offers
master franchise opportunities outside the U. S. and Canada. 9Round International’s master franchisees
offer franchises of the type described in this disclosure document in seventeen (17) countries around the world,
including Mexico, Costa Rica, Guatemala, Saudi Arabia, Jordan, Kuwait, Qatar, Bahrain, Iraq, Japan,
Singapore, Indonesia, Vietnam, South Korea, India, Australia and New Zealand.

Our former subsidiary, 9Round Franchising of Canada, Inc. (“9Round Canada”), a Canadian corporation,
offered franchises of the type described in this disclosure document in Canada from February 2014 to
December 2018. On January 1, 2019, 9Round Canada amalgamated into our current subsidiary,
9RFranchising Canada, ULC (“9RFranchising Canada”) 9RFranchising Canada’s registered address is 220
HSBC Building, 885 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 3E8, Canada. 9RFranchising Canada has
offered franchises of the type described in this disclosure document since January 1, 2019-—We. In 2024, we
and our affiliate 9RFranchising Canada af%eufren&y—aeplemlg—eppefmﬂfﬁes—te—emerentered into a master
franchise agreement for the territory of Canada, which will-ineludeincluded transferring existing and future
rights to offer and develop 9ROUND centers in the territory of Canada to a new master franchisee-.

Our subsidiary, 9Round Holding Company, LLC (“ORHC”), acquired the I LOVE KICKBOXING™
franchise system on February 28, 2024, making 9RHC the franchisor for the | LOVE KICKBOXING™ brand.
9RHC offers | LOVE KICKBOXING™ franchises under the | LOVE KICKBOXING™ trade name offering
a boxing and kickboxing physical fitness training program through scheduled classes in a group environment
with instructional staff and which includes a proprietary system of challenging workouts. 9RHC has the
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principal business address of 847 NE Main Street Simpsonville, South Carolina 29681. As of December 31,
2025, there were 31 I LOVE KICKBOXING™ [ocations in the United States.

Other than as described above, neither we nor any of our affiliates have ever offered franchises in any other
line of business. None of our affiliates provide products or services to our franchisees. Other than the
9Round Centers we own and operate, we have never operated a business of the type described in this
disclosure document.

The Franchise Offered

We have developed a proprietary business format and system (“System”) for operating a fitness center
(“Center”) that features a specialized program developed around a system of nine (9) challenging circuit
training stations, that incorporates boxing and kickboxing exercises, that includes personal trainer
assistance and nutrition services, and that is offered twenty-four (24) hours a day, subject to legal
requirements. The 9ROUND program combines strength, cardiovascular exercises, and circuit training for
the entire body to achieve results.

Our System includes a distinct interior layout, design, décor, color scheme, graphics, fixtures, and
furnishings, operating and customer service standards and procedures including proprietary workout
routines, advertising and marketing specifications and requirements, and other standards, specifications,
techniques, and procedures, that we designate (collectively, the “Standards”). Centers operating under the
System are identified by the trade name and service mark “9ROUND” and other trademarks, service marks,
and trade identifiers that we designate (the “Marks”). The System and Standards require you to offer access
to the Center to members for twenty-four (24) hours a day throughout the year unless local and municipality
regulations, landlord permissions, or the demographics of the Center mean twenty-four (24) hour access is
not permissible. Iftwenty-four (24) hour access is not permissible, we will determine the maximum number
of hours that your Center can offer services. During hours of operation, you will offer instructional staffed
(“trainer led”) and unstaffed (‘non-trainer led’) hours to members.

We grant qualified candidates the right to operate one (1) or more 9ROUND Centers according to our
Franchise Agreement (see Exhibit C) and our Standards which will be communicated to you via our
confidential operating manuals (the “Manual”) (see Item 11). Please see Item 5 regarding our Market
Accelerator Program.

We currently offer a franchisee referral program to existing franchisees (see Item 5).

We may explore a program with a big box fitness facility whereby 9ROUND Centers will occupy a location
within the big box fitness facility (see Item 5).

The Market and Competition

The market for fitness and workout centers and clubs is well developed and very competitive. You will
compete with other fitness clubs offering similar services, including national franchise systems and other
regional and local chains. You also will compete to a certain extent with public recreation centers and not-
for-profit community organizations, such as the YMCA. Before selecting a site for your Center, you should
survey the area for existing competitors and be aware that a competitor may enter the market at any time.

Typically, our services are sold to individuals and are not seasonal, although you may experience peak
months and membership fluctuations. For example, January is typically a busier month for health clubs.

Laws and Regulations

In addition to laws and regulations that apply to businesses generally, your Center will be subject to various
federal, state, and local government regulations, including those relating to site location and building
construction, such as the Americans with Disabilities Act.

9ROUND® 2
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The physical fitness industry, particularly providing services through for-profit clubs, and offering personal
training, is subject to extensive regulation at the local, state, and federal levels. Many states have enacted
specific laws (1) regulating membership contract length and terms, advertising, and limitations on pre-opening
sales, and (2) requiring bonding, buyer’s remorse cancellation rights for limited periods (usually three (3) to
ten (10) days after the sale), and cancellation and partial refund rights for medical or relocation reasons. At
the federal level, health clubs who sell memberships on credit may be subject to the federal Truth-In-Lending
Act and Regulation Z and various other credit-related statutes like the Equal Credit Act and Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

Some states have laws that require and regulate the content of service contracts or that require the presence of
at least one (1) person trained in administering CPR or the use of an external defibrillator. Many states also
require that certain types of fitness centers be equipped with working defibrillators. Some states have laws
that require and regulate the offering and certification of personal training services.

It is solely your responsibility to comply with all applicable laws and regulations and to obtain and keep in
force all necessary licenses and permits required by public authorities. Before purchasing the franchise, we
strongly urge you to hire an attorney to review local, state, and federal laws that may affect your operations
or impact your operating costs.

REMAINER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Founder, Chief Executive Officer, and Manager (Director): Shannon Hudson

Shannon is the creator and founder of the 9ROUND business model and system and has served as our CEO
and Manager (Director) since our inception in December 2008. Shannon opened the first JROUND Center
in March 2008, which currently operates in Greenville, South Carolina. Since July 2008, he also has served
as Manager of 9RSC, which operated a 9ROUND Center in Greenville, South Carolina through June 30,
2019. Since December 2013, Shannon has served as Manager of H&S, which operated 9Round Centers
through June 30, 2019.

Chief Operations Officer and Manager (Director): Heather Hudson

Heather has served as our COO and Manager (Director) since our inception in December 2008. Since July
2008, Heather also has served as Manager of 9RSC, which operated a 9ROUND Center in Greenville,
South Carolina through June 30, 2019. Since December 2013, Heather has served as Manager of H&S,
which operated 9Round Centers through June 30, 2019.

Deptess ot Vice Drosident2ide—te—leseepaber 200 apd FromsSonene s J000 pe el D000 ohs
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S+Director of Operations: Drew Stauffacher

Drew has served as the Vice President of Operations of 9Round Franchising, LLC since August of 2024
and as our Senior Director of Operations since June e£2023-andprior. Prior to that, Drew served as Director
of Fitness Programming for 9Round Franchising, LLC since January 2019. Drew was an owner of two (2)
9ROUND Centers from August of 2014 to March 2020.

Sr. Director of Franchise Resales: Brian Burke

Brian currently serves as Senior Director of Franchise Resales for 9Round Franchising, LLC. Prior to that,
Brian served as our Senior Director of Operations from June 2023 to December 2023. From September
2021 until June 2023, Brian served as our Director of Franchise Resales. Brian served as Director of
Ongoing Franchise Business Support for 9Round Franchising, LLC from November 2018 until September
2021. Brian began working with 9Round Franchising LLC in November 2016 as a franchise business coach.
Brian is a prior 9ROUND franchisee who operated up to three (3) Centers between December 2010 and
May 2020.

Sr. Director of Marketing and Creative: Anna Lynch

Anna has served as our Senior Director of Marketing and Creative since June 2023 and prior to that as our
Director of Marketing, leading our marketing team, since November 2015. Anna has been designated as a
Certified Franchise Executive by the International Franchise Association since February 2020.
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Sr. Manager{Directory:Kenneth S-—Esterow
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Marcus currently serves as the Senior Director of Distribution and Warehouse for 9Round Franchising,
LLC and 9Round International, LLC. Prior to that, Marcus served as our Director of Warehouse and
Distribution from July 2017 to August 2023.
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ITEM 3
LITIGATION

LiticationAsainst E hi i the Last Fiseal Y
Durinetiseal-year

Otherthanthese-actionsse litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

You will pay us an Initial Franchise Fee when you sign a Franchise Agreement, which secures your
Preliminary Designated Area. If you are acquiring franchise rights for a new, single Center, the Initial
Franchise Fee is $1924,900.

The Initial Franchise Fee is payable in full when the Franchise Agreement is signed and is nonrefundable.
The Initial Franchise Fee is uniform for all new franchisees but may differ for franchisees under prior
existing agreements.

Of-the-Opening-You must spend between $11,000 and $25.000 on grand opening marketing we require,
including $1.,850 that is paid directly to us.

You must purchase an Equipment and Inventory Package range-efranging from $39,800 to $41,700, you
will-pay-us-a-sum-of approximatelyincluding $25,000 that you will purchase from us.

You will pay us a sum of $2,500 to $4,000 before you open your Center for shipping and handling for both
Grand Opening Marketing Materials and Opening Equipment and Inventory Package.

You will pay us a fee to onboard personal training services, including access to a dedicated personal training
database, is $500 for the first Center and $200 for each additional Center.

Veteran’s Program

If you are a veteran or a former member of the U.S. Armed Forces and were honorably discharged (you
must provide us with a copy of your DD214), we will reduce your Initial Franchise Fee for your first Center
only by twentyfifteen percent (2615%) for an Initial Franchise Fee of $45;,92621.165 for your first Center
(“Veteran Discount”). This one-time Veteran Discount is separate to the discounts under the Market
Accelerator Program, should you choose to participate in the Market Accelerator Program.

® 8
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“Box within a Box” Program

We may explore a program with a big box fitness facility whereby 9ROUND Centers will occupy a location
within the big box fitness facility. Should this program be further developed, certain well qualified
franchisees who meet our then-current criteria as solely determined by us may be able to participate in the
program.

Antnitial Eranchisee Fee-o£-$19,900-will-be-utilized-for-If you are a new EranechiseesFranchisee signing a
Franchise Agreement which-seeuresan-Authorized Location-as-determined-byus;—foranewsfor a single
Center contained within the big box fitness facility, you will pay us an Initial Franchisee Fee of $24,900.

AnInitial Eranchisee Eee-of-$15;000—will-be—utilizedfor-If you are an existing EranehiseesFranchisee
signing a Franchise Agreement which-seeures-an-Autherized-Location-as-determined-byus;foranew,for

a single Center contained within the big box fitness facility, you will pay us an Initial Franchisee Fee of
$14.900 .

Market Accelerator Program

If you later would like to acquire franchise rights as part of our Step Up Program, the total Initial Franchise
Fee for the second Center, and for each additional Center, is $3+5;60614.900 (a discount of $4;96610,000
for each Center).

Step Up Program Amount
Initial Franchise Fee for first Center $1924,900
Each additional Center Initial Franchise Fee $15500014.900

Referral Program

We currently offer a franchisee referral program to existing franchisees (the “Referral Program”) whereby
if an existing franchisee introduces a prospect to us, other than under the terms of the Manager/Trainer to
Owner program or if a prospect is an existing franchisee themselves, and the prospect successfully becomes
a 9Round franchisee purchasing either a new license or an existing Center for sale that is not the Center of
the existing franchisee who made the introduction to 9Round, the existing franchisee may receive a fee of
$2,500. The Referral Program is solely operated at our discretion and may be modified or terminated at any
time. Existing franchisees must comply with certain terms of the Referral Program in order to qualify for
the fee, including only being authorized to display approved 9Round-provided Referral Program brochure
at their own 9Round Center(s) and introducing the prospect to our development department provided that
the prospect has not already begun our franchising process or whose information has been previously
received by us through other lead channels.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 6

OTHER FEES
Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
$600 or 6% Net Sales, Subject to CPI increase. The
Royalty FeeFee? whichever is greater, Monthly. fee may be collected through
per month. billing software.
Subject to CPI increase. The
fee may be collected through
o $250 or 2% of Net S
Brand Building Fund Sales, whichever is Monthly. billing software. See Item 11
Fee reater. per month for more information about Net
& P ’ Sales and the Brand Building
Fund.
Local Advertising . See Item 11 for more
. The higher of 8% of . . .
Spend, Local Marketmg gross revenue or information ab(?ut our .rlght Fo
Fund, or Cooperative . Monthly. set up and require participation
Advertising®Advertisin $4,500 per rolling three in a Local Marketing Fund or
: e ACVEIISINE | (3) month period.? . srt
> Contribution an advertising cooperative.
Subjeetto-inerease—The fee
may be collected through
billing software. Subject to
4
Technology Fee $499 per month. Monthly. CPl increase. In addition, we
may increase this fee annually
up to 10%.
i . .
. . f Subieettotnerenn corchanee
Digital Marketing ad-spend:-5300-per
Services’ Monthhy- %&%ﬁﬁ&y—b%eeﬂeeteé
ot rrid i gemm . thronsh-biline software:
- 199 initialand . . .
Lemennllendnine : J
Servicest Hrorep e D00 e Septhles resbeeslloetad hennl
Subject to CPI increase. In
addition, we may increase this
Insurance $126 - $240 per month. xzﬁziy or fee annually up to 10%.The fee
Y. may be collected through
billing software.
.COSt of audit plus Immediately You pay for cost of audit only
. interest at 12% or the - n
Audits upon receipt of | if it shows an understatement

maximum rate
allowable by law.

bill.

of memberships or revenue.

Annual Convention Will vary under the Annual, upon Sﬁbjiet—te—liixﬁezsiThe }fee
Tickets"Tickets’ circumstances demand. may be co ected throug
(currently $399 per billing software and may be
9ROUND® 10
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
franchise owner). taken in installments, at our
option. Subject to CPI
increase. In addition, we may
increase this fee annually up to
10%.
Stbjeet-to-trerease—The fee
T may be collected through
oR INOWSLive meﬂfl:ﬁWill vary under As bill@ng sgftware. .Payable upon
Trainine Event Tickets® the circumstances incurre dj - registration. Sul?lf:ct to CPI
(currently $99 - $199 e increase. In addition, we may
per franchise owner). increase this fee annually up to
10%.
. | } 0
DoorEntry Key-Fobs® | $250-perbox- : Subjectto-increase—Payable
Soimereed upon- order-
Payable when you assign your
Franchise Agreement to a
Upon corporation or other business
application to entity owned by you or when
Assignment Fee $500- assign your you alter the percentage

Franchise ownership of any minority
Agreement. partner, member, or other
owner of your business, other
than the Principal Owner.
$5.000 for existing Upon
Franchisees acquiring assignment
an existing Center application.
Transfer Fee
- $10.000 for new
Franchisees acquiring
an existing Center
$7.500 for an existing Upon
manager or trainer who | assignment Must meet our criteria and sign
Emplovee Transfer Fee worked for an existing application. a new Franchise Agreement
Franchisee for at least 6 with a 5 year term.
months
Subjeetto-inerease—Payable
upon completed work product
Graphic Design . provjded to you or the .
1o 7 $56—8100 per hour. As incurred. applicable vendor. Subject to
Eee™Fee’ . .
CPI increase. In addition, we
may increase this fee annually
up to 10%.
Relocation Fee $1,500 - $5,000. Upon Payable when you relocate
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
application to your Center.
relocate your
Center.
Payable only if your non-
Costs and Attorneys’ Will vary under . compliance with the Franchise
. As incurred. .
Fees circumstances. Agreement causes us to incur
legal expenses.
Interest 12% per annum. Upon demand. Payable only if you fail to pay
amounts owed to us when due.
You must reimburse us if we
. . Will vary under the . are held liable for claims
Indemnification . As incurred. - .
circumstances. arising out of your franchise

operations.

Our costs and
expenses, which we
expect will range from

See Item 8 for more

plus your travel

Supplier Review Fee $1,000 to $5,000, but As incurred. information on approved

may exceed this range suppliers.

depending on the

product.
If you fail to submit a “walk-
through” video, you must
reimburse us for our costs,

Quality Assurance Our out-of-pocket costs including travel costs, that we

. . . Upon demand. . .

Inspections which will vary. incur related to evaluating or
inspecting your Center with
our personnel or third party
“mystery shoppers.”

You must maintain the Center
premises and modernize them
. Our reasonable costs .
Modernization and ) every five (5) years. If you fail
. and expenses which Upon demand.
Maintenance Costs . to do so, we may complete
will vary.
these for you, and you must
pay us our reasonable costs.
If you engage in a private
offering of securities, we must
Securities Offering Will vary under the review the prospectus or other
. Upon demand. .

Costs circumstances. offering documents and you
will pay our costs for that
review.

Ongoing Training $99 to $500 per person Upon demand. Subject-to-ncrease-We may

require you and other key
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Type of Fee!

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

expenses. If our
representative provides
additional training at
your Center, we may
require you to
reimburse our related
travel and lodging costs
for our representative.

employees of the Center to
attend ongoing training, which
will be held at a location that we
designate. Subject to CPI
increase. In addition, we may
increase this fee annually up to
10%.

Renewal Fee

25% of the then-current
Initial Franchise Fee;
for the 2025 calendar
year, we are offering a
reduced renewal fee of
$1.000.

Before renewal,
at least six (6)
months but not
twelve (12)
months prior to
end of expiring
term.

See Item 17 for Renewal Term
and Conditions of Renewal.

$250 per enforcement
effort (i.e. written or

We may assess an
administrative fee to
compensate us for our efforts
to address the failure to comply
with the Franchise Agreement

Administrative Fee verbal nofification and Upon demand. or Brand Standards. . Sub]'ect to
follow up). CPI increase. In addition, we
may increase this fee annually
up to 10%.
5% of the Center’s If you are in default of the
gross revenues, plus Franchise Agreement, we may
Management Fee reimbursement of our Upon demand. send our personnel to manage
reasonable costs and the Center until the default is
expenses. cured.
For ceasing operations
or committing a default
that results in
termination of your
franchise rights, the
lesser of $20,000 or the
Liquidated estimated present value U d d
| D.a.ﬂc}a.gesHDamagesx of monthly fees pon demand.
through the end of the

franchise term;

For selling
unauthorized products,
an amount equal to
70% of gross revenues
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks

derived from the sale;

For offering
unauthorized services,
an amount equal to
100% of gross revenues
derived from the
offering of services.

We may explore a program with a big box fitness facility whereby 9ROUND Centers will occupy a location
within the big box fitness facility. Should this program be further developed, certain well qualified franchisees
who meet our then-current criteria as solely determined by us may be able to participate in the program to
operate one (1) or more 9ROUND Centers accordingly to our Franchise Agreement (which may be subject to
amendment for the purposes of this program) and may benefit from certain reduced ongoing fees.

Notes:

Note 1. All fees are imposed by, payable to, and collected by us unless otherwise noted. All fees are imposed
uniformly and are non-refundable upon payment. As noted in the chart above, several fees paid to us are
subject to adjustment over the ten-{1+0)-yearagreement term based on increases in the Consumer Price Index
(CPI). Adjustments based on the CPI will be made no more than once per year.

Note 2. If you acquire an existing Center, we will reduce the Rovyalty Fee to $300 or 3% of Net Sales,
whichever is greater, for the initial twelve (12) months following the effective date of the Franchise
Agreement. Following the initial twelve (12) month period following the effective date of the Franchise
Agreement, the Rovalty Fee will be $600 or 6% of Net Sales, whichever is greater, per month.

Note 3.Mete2- Each local advertising cooperative may elect to increase the monthly contribution to the
cooperative if approved by a two-thirds majority of the members, and the minimum contribution is subject
to adjustment by an amount not to exceed the increase in the CPI. Centers owned by us and our affiliates
are also members of their respective local cooperative and each company-owned Center has the same voting
rights as the franchised locations within the cooperative. If our company-owned Centers comprise the
majority of a given cooperative the maximum and minimum fees for that cooperative will be consistent
with the range stated in this Item 6 (subject to adjustment for increases in the CPI).

We offer optional assistance with local marketing. Fees will vary depending on availability, market size,
and strategy.

MNete3-Ifyou fail to add at least forty-five (45) new members (excluding trial memberships or memberships
lasting less than a full month) during a rolling three (3)-month period, we reserve the right to audit your
marketing and advertising to ensure it conforms to our standards and specifications. If you have not spent
the higher of 8% of your gross revenue or $4,500 per rolling three (3)-month period on Local Advertising,
we reserve the right to collect the difference, through billing software, between how much you have spent
in the applicable rolling three (3)-month period and the minimum required expenditure. Any amounts that
we collect will be added to the Brand Building Fund.

Note 4. As technology and member demands change, we anticipate providing different or additional
services available to members. Some of these services may include different or additional member service
fees and you agree to participate in our future member service initiatives and pay the applicable fees that
we impose periodically. Currently, member services include access to the online portal which provides
nutritional and fitness information and recipes. The Technology Fee is $499 per month. The Technology
Fee currently includes online membership services, any 9Round app, the 9Round website, PULSE Heart
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Rate Zone System technology, email-marketingsoftware—four (4) 9Round email addresses, voice timer
system, and daily workout screens-, but is subject to change. Each additional address is currently $5 per
month per email address.

Nete-ZNote 5. Each franchise owner is required to purchase a ticket to our annual convention, the location
of which varies, but is usually held in the lower forty-eight (48) states of the US. The then-current ticket
price is $399 but is subject to increase. We may collect the ticket price through billing software and may
be taken in installments, at our option. In addition to the ticket price, you are responsible for all costs
associated with attending the annual convention, such as travel, lodging, and other incidentals. The costs
may increase if you are attending with more than one (1) franchise owner, a manager, or other staff.

encouraged to purchase a ticket to our intermittent live training events, the location of which varies, but is
usually held in the lower forty-eight (48) states of the US or virtually at our option. The then current ticket
price is $99 to $199 but is subject to increase. In addition to the ticket price, you are responsible for all costs
associated with attending the live training event, such as travel, lodging, and other incidentals. The costs
may increase if you are attending with more than one (1) franchise owner, a manager, or other staff. Live
training events may be held in place of or in addition to our annual convention. If held in place of our annual
convention, each franchise owner may be required to purchase a ticket.

9ROUND® 15
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Nete10:-Note 7. Upon your request, and subject to availability, we, or our approved suppliers, may offer
services to complete retail designs, window decals, create local advertising assets, update and/or promote
your website, and provide other graphic design services. Our current hourly rate, depending upon the
services requested, is $50 - $100 per hour, which is subject to change or increase. Any requests for changes
or updates to the content of your website and/or any type of website promotion you wish to do must be
approved by us in writing and performed by us, or our approved suppliers. We typically respond to you
within ten (10) business days of our receipt of your request for all website changes. We may charge a fee
of $50 - $100 per hour as necessary to update and/or promote your website or provide other graphic design
services. Delivery time for designs will vary based on the type of request. We may collect the fees through
our billing software. We will provide you with at least thirty (30) calendar days’ notice of any change to
our graphic design fee. Currently, we do not charge for minor updates such as changes to phone number,
physical gym address, location email, or location URLSs, but we may restrict the number of major and minor
changes that we will make.

Note H-8. If you prematurely cease operations, or if you commit a default that results in termination of your
franchise rights, you must pay us, as liquidated damages, the lesser of $20,000 or an amount equal to the
average monthly fees paid to us over the past twelve (12) months multiplied by the number of months remaining
in the then-current term, reduced to present value at a rate of 6%. If you sell any products or offer any services
that we have not authorized for sale, you must pay us an amount equal to 70% of the gross revenue that you
derived from the sale of unauthorized products, and 100% of the gross revenues that you derived from the offer
of unauthorized services. We have the right to collect these amounts in the same way as we collect payment of
Royalty Fees. We also have the right, in our sole discretion, to collect these amounts immediately or in
installments, payable at 6% interest for a term of up to twenty-four (24) months.
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ITEM 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Method of To Whom
Type of Expenditure Amount When Due Payment is to be
Payment
Made
Initial Franchise Fee! $5;60014.900 to | Lump sum | At signing of the Us
$1924,900 Franchise
Agreement
Computer, $2,500 to $20,000 As Before opening Vendors
Technology, and arranged as incurred
Sound System?
Security System? $713,000 to As Before opening Approved
$917,000 | arranged Vendors
Lease Deposits, $2,000 to $7,500 As Before opening | Landlord, Utility
Utilities, and arranged Suppliers, and
Insurance? Insurer
Leasehold $10,000 to $110,200 As Before opening Contractors
Improvements’ arranged
Leasehold Finishes $6,000 to $25,000 As Before opening Contractors
and Fixtures® arranged
Sound Proofing $0 to $10,000 As Before opening Contractors
(optional)’ arranged
Grand Opening $4011,000 to As If you have Us and Approved
Marketing® $25,000 | arranged acquired a new Vendors
license, partially
payable before
opening. If you
have acquired an
existing license,
partially payable
at signing of
Franchise
Agreement.
Then, as incurred
Opening Equipment $39,800 to $41,700 As Before opening | Us and Approved
and Inventory arranged as incurred Vendors
Package’
Stretching Station $0 to $2,500 As Before opening | Us and Approved
Package'” arranged as incurred Vendors
Free Weight Station $0 to $5,000 As Before opening | Us and Approved
Package'® arranged as incurred Vendors
Cable Machine $0 to $3.000 As Before opening | Us and Approved
Package'” arranged as incurred Vendors
Digital Advertising $0 to $1,500 As Before opening | Us and Approved
Screen (optional)!! arranged as incurred Vendors
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Method of To Whom
Type of Expenditure Amount When Due Payment is to be
Payment
Made
Exterior Signage'? $2,000 to $12,000 As Before opening Approved
arranged Vendors
Heart Rate Zone $1,400 to $2,400 As Before opening Approved
System!? arranged Vendor
Daily workout screens $10,000 to $15,000 As Before opening Approved
system'* arranged Vendors
Low Voltage Data'” $2.000 to $10.000 As Before opening Approved
arranged as incurred Vendors
Customized managed $2,600 to $3,600 As Before opening Approved
network system arranged Vendors
Body composition $349 to $5,500 As Before opening Approved
analyzer*analyzer!® arranged Vendors
Shipping and Handling $5,500 to $8,000 As Before opening | Us and Approved
(for the Grand arranged as incurred Vendors
Opening Marketing
Materials, Opening
Equipment and
Inventory Package,
and daily workout
screens system)
Travel, Lodging and $1,000 to $4,000 As As incurred See Item 11 and
Meals for Initial arranged Note 8
Training
Program™Program'’
Business Licenses and $400 to $1,500 As Before opening Appropriate
Other Professional arranged Licensing
Fees'’Fees'® Authorities and
Third Parties
Additional Funds — As As incurred Third Parties
three (3) $25,000 to $61,000 arranged
months™®months"
Total®Total? $130,549149.449 to
$390416,300

These figures represent the estimated costs to develop a Center and to operate it during the initial phase —
which is estimated to be three (3) months. We cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses
during this period. Your actual costs will depend on how closely you follow the 9ROUND system standards,
your management skill, experience and business acumen, local economic conditions, acceptance by local
consumers of our approved services, prevailing wage rates, competition, the size of your Center, and other
factors. If you purchase franchise rights for additional Centers under our Market Accelerator Program, you
will incur these expenses for each Center you develop, less the applicable Initial Franchise Fee discount. In
preparing your budget, you should also consider the potential effect of inflation on future costs. All fees
are nonrefundable unless otherwise stated and may not include applicable taxes.

We may explore a program with a big box fitness facility whereby 9ROUND Centers will occupy a location
within the big box fitness facility. Should this program be further developed, certain well qualified
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Franchisees who meet our then-current criteria as solely determined by us may be able to participate in the
program and costs of initial investment may be less.

A Creemen a a Nne o
d al l Vv v

- sopm et Lol Wenseliee Lo 000 Dt el e e
Eranehisees-opening-anewloeation—See Item 5 for a description of the Initial Franchise Fees and available
discounts available in our Market Accelerator Program, Resale Programs, and Veteran Discount.

Failure to pay the Initial Franchise Fee upon execution of the Franchise Agreement will result in a non-
curable default of the Franchise Agreement by you and we will have the right to immediately terminate the
Franchise Agreement in accordance with the relevant terms of the Franchise Agreement.

Note 2. The range includes the estimated cost for computers, software, printers, high-speed internet
connection, sound system, television, -telephone(s) with answering system, and hardware and installation
costs for the 9ROUND music system.

Note 3. The range includes the estimated cost for the security and surveillance system and fifty (50) door
entry key fobs. See Item 6 for more information about additional door entry key fobs.

Note 4. These estimates are based on leasing a 1,500 to 2,700 square foot facility in vanilla shell condition,
located in a strip center in the Greenville, South Carolina area, and include your first month’s rent, security
deposit, utility deposits, and insurance. The space must be enclosed and separate from other businesses with
its own locking door. Except for the security deposit, lease payments generally are not refundable.

The estimated deposits for utilities include electric, gas, and water, but your deposit may vary due to policies
of local utility companies.

See Item 8 for more information about our insurance requirements and our designated insurance program.
This estimate includes premium for three (3) months of the insurance plan from our designated supplier. If
you need additional insurance for your Center (for example, state workers’ compensation or a surety bond),
you may have additional costs. A surety bond may range from $100 to $500 per year, depending on the
state. Workers’ compensation coverage may range from $450 to $1,000 and may be more depending on the
number of employees and your state requirements.

Note 5. These figures include the estimated cost of interior alterations and improvements to a location in
vanilla shell condition. This cost depends on the extent of the renovations needed to convert space into
separate areas, costs of labor and materials in the area, local building and other code requirements, landlord
construction criteria, any allowance you negotiate with the lessor for construction, and other factors. We
recommend that you find a location that needs minimal leasehold improvements or fixtures. For new
locations, the range is typically $40,000 to $110,200. For the purchase of an existing Center, leasehold
improvements are considerably less and may not be required if the Center is in good condition and meets
our then-current Standard. For an existing Center, unless local and municipality regulations, landlord
permissions, or the demographics of the Center mean that twenty-four (24) hour access is not permissible,
we will require that the existing Center undergoes the necessary modernizations to offer access to the Center
twenty-four (24) hours a day throughout the year.

Note 6. Includes the cost of paint, wall paneling, mirrors, lighting, and entry and bathroom tile. These
estimates do not include the cost of purchasing real property, as we do not expect that you will buy real
property. These figures do not incorporate any landlord concessions, such as free rent or landlord build out
of your space.

Note 7. We recommend, but do not require, that you soundproof your Center, according to our
specifications. The figures included reflect these costs.
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Note 8. If you acquire franchise rights for a new Center, you must spend a minimum of $2511,000, as
determined by us, for local grand opening marketing, which will commence approximately twelve-(12)

weeksthree (3) months before the opening of your Center and approximately eight(8)weekstwo (2) months

after the opening of your Center. You may spend more than the minimum amount. You will pay $+7560a

minimum of $1,850 directly to us within-ene-(H-week-afteryousign-thelease-forprior to opening the Center

for your print materials and event starter kit, both of which contain Varlous promotlonal materials, for dlgltal
marketlng advertlsmg, H h 5

%hai—wer%p%&s—wrﬂ—b&&sed—feﬁh%&g&a%m&ketmg—s%e& You may spend more than the minimum

amount. Pre-opening and grand opening or new ownership marketing will consist of a variety of marketing
tactics including, but not limited to, digital advertising, email marketing, local networking, participation in
local community events, public relations, and other marketing and advertising initiatives or materials
intended to publicize the opening of the Center.

Note 9. The Opening Equipment and Inventory Package includes the exercise equipment and floor mats
necessary to operate the Center (including items such as punching bags, weights, jump ropes, medicine
balls and racks, speed bags, speed bag platforms and high-end industrial quality floor mats), interior
signage, entry furniture and displays, and your initial opening inventory of retail items (including gloves,
hand wraps, heart rate monitors, and apparel).

Note 10. The Stretching Station Package currently includes the stretching station screen and stretching
equipment. The Free Weight Station Package currently includes weight training equipment. The Cable
Machine Package currently includes the cable machine and attachments. These packages may be optional
or required based on the square footage of your Center and our current programs.

Note 11. The digital advertising screen is a screen that is dynamically updated to display current products,
promotions and services offered at the Center. This item is currently optional.

Note 12. This includes estimated purchase cost of exterior signage and related delivery and installation.
You may use a local vendor.

Note 13. You must purchase our 9ROUND Heart Rate Zone system called 9ROUND PULSE. You also
must purchase all equipment required to implement and use the system at our then-current specifications.
The required equipment will vary based on your Center layout and square footage. The current minimum
required equipment includes- one (1) 65-inch flat screen television to display live workout statistics, two
(2) wireless antenna, HDMI cables, one (1) laptop, and one (1) router. The current maximum required
equipment includes two (2) 70-inch flat screen televisions to display live workout statistics, four (4)
wireless antenna, one (1) wireless access point, HDMI cables and splitter, one (1) laptop, and one (1) router.

Note 14. You must purchase hardware for our 9ROUND daily workout screens system from us or approved
vendors. You must purchase all equipment to implement and use the system, which currently includes nine
(9) screens to be mounted at each workout station that will demonstrate the daily training applicable at each
station.

Note 15. This is the estimated cost for the low voltage data needed for cameras, door access, and electronic
systems. You must purchase and maintain low voltage data to ensure a stable connection for your Center.
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Note 16. You must purchase hardware for the body composition analyzer from us or approved vendors.
Y ou must purchase all equipment to implement and use the system, which includes a body composition and
other vital measurements system. The then-current cost of the required analyzer is $349, which is subject
to increase and taxes. You may purchase an analyzer from us or the approved vendor that has additional
features, which may require a monthly subscription fee to a third-party vendor, provided that the analyzer
meets the Standards.

Note +617. Training is held at either at our corporate headquarters (currently, Simpsonville, South Carolina)
or a location nearby in Greenville County, South Carolina. You are responsible for all costs associated with
attending such as travel, room and board. At our discretion, we may host training virtually. If training is
held virtually or if you live close to our training location, or if you are an existing franchisee purchasing a
Center under the Resale Program and we determine that you do not need to re-attend the initial training
program, you may incur no travel, lodging, or meal costs for the initial training program. If you are a new
franchisee to the System under the Resale Program and you fail to attend the initial training program as
directed by us, under the terms of your Franchise Agreement, we have the right to terminate for-cause,
however, in our sole discretion and as an alternative to for-cause termination, you will pay $10,000 to cover
our costs and fees for up to two (2) members of our training staff to travel to the Center to deliver the initial
training program to you, and such sums shall be fully earned and non-refundable and may be collected via
the point of sale system. See Item 11 for more information about training.

Note +718. We recommend that you hire an attorney to help you evaluate this franchise offering, to identify
the laws and regulations that may apply to your Center, to help you set up a business entity, to review and
negotiate your lease and for whatever other purpose you deem appropriate.

Note 4819. The figures in the chart represent the estimated amount of working capital you will need to cover
other initial operating expenses for a period of three (3) months and are based on estimated figures to open
a Center in Greenville County, South Carolina, based on our local market experience. This includes the
minimum amount that you must spend on local advertising and marketing per month (minimum $4,500 per
rolling three (3) month period), $437140 per month for the security system monthly fee and $20 to $140
per month for the managed network service fee. These figures are estimates, and we cannot guarantee you
will not have additional expenses starting the business. The figures in the chart include the estimated
amounts of employee salary or wages and rent, excluding any distributions or draw to the franchisee.

Note 1920. The total estimated initial investment is an estimate only of the range of start-up expenses you
may incur. We relied on our principals’ combined expertise when preparing these figures. The actual
amount of additional funds you will need depends on a variety of factors, including the size of your Center,
the time of year when you start your business, type and quantity of exercise equipment in your Center,
implementation of a marketing plan, your own management skill, economic conditions, competition in your
area, and other factors. The estimate of initial investment funds is based on owner-operated business, and
does not include salaries or benefits for full-time employees. As your business grows, you may choose to
hire employees to carry out support service tasks. The estimate does not include any finance charges,
interest, or debt service obligation, or your living expenses. You should have sufficient capital or other
means to pay for your living expenses for at least twelve (12) months.

Y ou should also allow for inflation, discretionary expenditures, fluctuating interest rates, and other costs of
financing, and local market conditions, which can be highly variable and can result in substantial, rapid,
and unpredictable increases in costs.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Site Selection

You must operate the Center at a location that meets our then-current site selection requirements and that
we have approved. We require that the Center offers instructional staffed and unstaffed services to members
for twenty-four (24) hours a day throughout the year, subject to legal requirements. If you lease the location,
you and the landlord must execute the standard form of lease addendum (attached to the Franchise
Agreement as Attachment E).

You must construct and equip your Center according to our approved design, specifications, and standards.
In addition to meeting our design specifications and standards, it is your responsibility to ensure that your
building plans comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all other federal, state, and local laws.
You must also use equipment (including hardware and software for the Technology System, as further
described in Item 11), signage, fixtures, furnishings, products, supplies, and marketing materials that meet
our specifications and standards.

Approved and Designated Suppliers

Currently, we are the only approved supplier of your ongoing inventory of gloves, supportive hand wraps,
punching bags, certain print materials, heart rate monitors and belts, apparel, furniture, website, graphic
design services, and certain nutrition services. Other than this, neither we nor our affiliates are approved
suppliers of any other products or services, and none of our officers hold an interest in any other privately-
held suppliers, or a material interest in any publicly-held suppliers, to our franchise system. Occasionally,
our officers may own non-material interest in publicly-held companies that may be suppliers to our
franchise system.

You must purchase from approved sources, which may include us, our required opening equipment and
inventory package (which includes equipment and initial inventory), grand opening advertising services,
certain heart rate monitoring equipment, hardware for the daily workout screens system, hardware for the
voice timer system, customized managed network system, 9ROUND music system, point of sale system,
email marketing subscription package, and business text messaging service. You also must maintain and
communicate at all times and for all business purposes through an email address provided by our approved
vendor.

We will provide you with a list of approved manufacturers, suppliers, and distributors (“Approved Suppliers
List”) and other approved equipment, signs, stationery, supplies and other items or services that we
periodically designate as necessary to operate the Center (“Approved Supplies List”). We, an affiliate, or a
third-party vendor or supplier, may be the only approved supplier for certain products. The Approved
Supplies List also may include other specific products without reference to a particular manufacturer, or
they may designate the specifications and standards for other approved products. We may revise the
Approved Suppliers List and Approved Supplies List. We give you the approved lists as we deem advisable.

You may use in the operation of the Center only the proprietary or non-proprietary equipment that we
specify, and must purchase and lease all equipment that we designate from our approved suppliers.

Except for instances where we designate a single source supplier, if you wish to purchase any products or
services for which we have established approved suppliers from an unapproved supplier, you may request
our consent in writing. If we request, you must submit samples and other information as we require for
testing or to otherwise determine whether the product, material or supply, or the proposed supplier meets
our specifications and quality and safety standards. We generally will notify you in writing of supplier
approval or disapproval within thirty (30) days of our receipt of all the information and samples we request.
You must pay the reasonable cost of the inspection and evaluation and the actual cost of the test. The
supplier also may be required to sign a supplier agreement. We may re-inspect the facilities and products
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of any supplier of an approved supplier or item and revoke our approval of any supplier or item that fails
to continue to meet any of our criteria. Once approved, you may contract directly with the approved
supplier. We will send written notice of any revocation of an approved supplier or item.

We apply the following general criteria in approving a proposed supplier: (1) ability to make product in
conformity with our specifications; (2) reputation and integrity of supplier; (3) financial condition and
insurance coverage of the supplier; and (4) system-wide strategic direction and system uniformity.

Insurance

You must maintain at your expense the types of insurance and the minimum policy limits specified in the
Manual and our written directives. Where applicable law permits us to designate an insurance provider, we
require our franchisees to purchase insurance from our preferred insurance provider.

Your insurance policies must be underwritten by approved insurers licensed and admitted to write coverage
in the state in which the Center is located and with a rating of “A” or better. They must protect you, us, and
our affiliates, and our and our affiliates’ respective, past, present, and future officers, directors, owners,
members, managers, employees, consultants, attorneys, and agents against any loss, liability, personal
injury, death, property damage, or expense whatsoever arising out of or occurring upon or in with the
condition, operation, management, use, or occupancy of your Center. The policy must provide for the
following coverages:

Type of Insurance Amount
General Liability including Hired Non-Owned
Auto, Sexual Abuse or Sexual Molestation $1,000,000 per occurrence; $5,000,000 in the
Liability, Medical Expense, and Business Income | aggregate
Coverage
Property $50,000
Professional $1,000,000

In addition, you must carry workers’ compensation and employer liability coverage as required by the
jurisdiction in which you operate the Center.

We, our affiliates, and other parties we designate must be named as additional insureds on a primary non-
contributory basis under each policy, except for policies required by statute in your jurisdiction, including,
but not limited to, workers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance policies. You and your
insurers must also waive rights of subrogation against us. We may require additional types of coverage or
increase the required minimum amount of coverage upon reasonable notice. We recommend, and may
require in the future, that you to obtain cyber liability insurance. Your obligation to obtain coverage is not
limited in any way by insurance that we maintain. Upon our request or as specified in the Manual, you must
provide us with certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage. Your insurer(s) must commit
not to cancel or amend the policy or policies without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to us. If
you fail to obtain and maintain required insurance coverage, we have the right, but not the obligation, to
obtain the required insurance on your behalf and to charge you for the cost of the insurance plus a reasonable
fee for our services in procuring the insurance.

Marketing and Promotional Materials

You may only use marketing and promotional materials that meet our standards (see Item 11 for more
information on advertising and marketing).
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Revenue Derived from Franchisee Purchases and Leases

We have an agreement with various merchandise suppliers where we receive a rebate of up to 35% of the
sale price of each item.

During our fiscal year ending on December 31, 20242023, we derived $2,574:965211,991.19 from
franchisee purchases and leases, which amount represents +921% of our total revenue of
$13-493.02310,453,758.85, based on our audited financial statements.

Estimated Proportion of Required Purchases and Leases to all Purchases and Leases

We estimate that your required purchases or leases (meaning purchases or leases from approved or
designated sources) will represent approximately 35%-55% of your total purchases and leases in
establishing the franchised business, and approximately 15%-25% of your total purchases and leases in
operating the franchised business.

Description of Purchasing Cooperatives; Purchasing Arrangements

We negotiate purchase arrangements for the benefit of the System but not on behalf of individual
franchisees. This does not guarantee that the price for these products or services will be lower than other
products or services on the market. We are not aware of any purchasing or distribution cooperatives in the
System as of the date of this disclosure document. We do not provide you any material benefits (such as
renewal rights or the right to acquire additional franchises) based on your purchases from approved or
designated suppliers.
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ITEM 9

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this

disclosure document.

pre-opening requirements

and 8B

Obligation Section in Franchise Agreement Disclosure Document Item
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease | Sections 2B, 2C, 5A, and 5B Items 8 and 11
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases Sections 5A, 5B, 5C, 6A and 6C Items 5, 7 and 8
c. Site development and other Sections 2B, 2C, 5A, 5B,5C, 7B, Items 5,7, 8 and 11

policies/Operating Manual

d. Initial and ongoing training Sections 7B and 7C Items 5, 6, 11, 14 and 15
e. Opening Section 5D Items 5 and 11
f. Fees Sections 5@, 5H, 6K, 7C, 8, 9, Items 5, 6 and 7
11C(ix) and 11G
g. Compliance with standards and Section 6 Items 6,7, 8,11, 14 and 16

h. Trademarks and proprietary

Sections 2A, 2D, 3, 6H, 10E and

Items 13 and 14

modernization and remodeling
requirements

information 10F
1. Restrictions on products/services Section 6 Items 6,7, 8,11, and 16
offered
] Warranty and customer services No provisions relating to warranty | Items 6
requirements requirements. Customer services,
see Sections 6 and 9C
k. Territorial development and sales Sections 2B, 2C, 5G, and Item 12
quotas Attachment A
1. Ongoing product/service purchases | Section 6 Items 6, 7 and 8
m.  Maintenance, appearance, Section 5 Items 8 and 11

n. Insurance

Section 6P, 9C, and 10C

Items 6, 7, 8 and 16

o. Advertising

Section 61 and 8

Items 5,6,7,8 and 11

p- Indemnification Section 10B and 15K Item 6
q. Owner’s participation/ Sections 6G, 7, 9H and 15F Item 15
management/staffing
r. Records/reports Sections 91 and 13A Not Applicable
S. Inspections/audits Sections 5A, 5D, 5E, 6E and 91 Items 6, 11 and 15
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Obligation Section in Franchise Agreement Disclosure Document Item

t. Transfer Section 11 Items 6 and 17
u. Renewal Section 4B Items 6 and 17
V. Post-termination obligations Sections 10D and 14 Item 17
w. Non-competition covenants Section 10D Item 17
X. Dispute resolution Section 12 Item 17
y. Guarantee Section 11C(v) and 15F Item 15

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
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ITEM 10
FINANCING

As of the date of this disclosure document we do not offer direct or indirect financing and we do not
guarantee your note, lease or obligation.

We may periodically arrange with third party finance companies or banks to make financing programs
available to franchisees. These arrangements ordinarily involve no more than arranging to put franchisees
in contact with sources of financing available to individual franchisees. There is no assurance that financing
will be offered in any particular instance. If financing is offered, the financial institution independently
establishes the amount, terms, interest rate and duration. If an individual franchisee, who does not have an
active relationship with Guidant, is referred to Guidant Financial of 2404 Bank Drive, Boise ID, and the
individual franchisee elects a Rollover as Business Start-Up (ROBS) loan with a fee of $4,995, Guidant
will pay us a referral fee of $1,000. Other than the foregoing, neither we nor any of our affiliates receive
any payments in exchange for such referrals or the placement of any financing. It is solely your
responsibility to locate and obtain, on whatever terms you can arrange, any required financing for the
establishment of your Center.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS
AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, 9Round Franchising, LL.C, is not required to provide you with any assistance.
Before you open your Center, we will:

1. Provide you with our then-current site selection criteria, and the general design for your Center
(Franchise Agreement, Sections 5A and 5C).

2. Provide you with the names of approved suppliers and Approved Supplies Lists (Franchise
Agreement, Section 6C).

3. Provide you with access to the Manual that details the specifications and procedures incidental to
the operation of the Center. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6G). These include specifications for
equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory, and supplies. We do not install the equipment, signs,
or fixtures, but we provide installation instructions for certain items.

4. Provide the training programs described below (Franchise Agreement, Sections 7B and 7C).
5. Provide grand opening assistance (Franchise Agreement, Section 8B).

During the operation of your Center, we will:

1. Provide updates to the approved suppliers and Approved Supplies Lists (Franchise Agreement,
Section 6C).
2. Evaluate your business and provide ongoing support and service as we determine necessary

(Franchise Agreement, Section 6E).
3. Provide refresher training courses as we determine necessary (Franchise Agreement, Section 7C).

Advertising and Marketing

If you acquire franchise rights for a new Center, approximately twelve{12)sweeksthree (3) months before the
Center opens for business and approximately eight{8)—weekstwo (2) months after the Center opens for

busmess you must paygus—aﬁd—appreved—venéefs—feifconduct local grand opening marketlng—lrﬂyeﬁ—aeqaﬂﬁe

Venéefs—\ﬁl-l—pfewéﬁe—yeurequlre 1nc1ud1ng dlgltal marketlng—semees—aﬁd You must spend between
$1 1,000 and $25 000 on this grand openmg ef—new—ewnefshm—maﬂeeﬁﬂgﬂﬂafeﬂals—as—th%eas%may—b%aﬂé

@emer—marketmg, mcludmg $1 850 that is pald dlrectly to us.

You must use your best efforts to aggressively promote and advertise the Center in your local area and
participate in any local promotional programs that we establish. On an ongoing basis, you must spend the
higher of 8% of your monthly gross revenue or $18,000 per calendar year (an average of $1,500 per month,
which may be more during peak months and less during non-peak months) on advertising or marketing that
conforms to our standards and specifications. If you fail to add forty-five (45) memberships (excluding trial
memberships or memberships lasting less than a full month) over any rolling three (3)-month period, we
reserve the right to audit your marketing and advertising to ensure it conforms to our standards and
specifications. If you have not spent the higher of 8% of your monthly gross revenue or $4,500 per rolling
three (3)-month period on Local Advertising, we reserve the right to collect the difference, through billing
software, between how much you have spent in the applicable three (3)-month rolling period and the minimum
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required expenditure. Any amounts that we collect will be added to the Brand Building Fund. The advertising
program for the products and services offered by 9ROUND Centers currently consists of print, direct mail,
digital advertising, and special promotions designed for use by franchisees in their local markets. We are not
required to spend any amount on advertising in the area or territory where your franchise is located.

Any marketing material not designed or provided by us must be pre-approved; you must submit your
marketing materials to us for approval prior to using (print, electronic or other forms of media) and actively
promote your Center and the system through use of approved local marketing and marketing materials. We
will not unreasonably withhold approval of your marketing materials, which must be factually accurate and
current, dignified, up-to-date, and in good condition, and must accurately depict the 9ROUND Marks.

Brand Building Fund

You must pay us a Brand Building Fund Fee of $250, or 2% of Net Sales, whichever is greater, per month
in the same manner and at the same time as the Royalty Fee. “Net Sales” is defined as the aggregate of all
revenue from the sale of services and products from all sources in connection with the business at your
Center or online whether for check, cash, credit, or otherwise (and regardless of collectability), and all
proceeds from any business interruption insurance, but does not include (a) the sale price of products
returned in good faith by customers of the business, (b) any sales tax or other taxes collected from customers
of the business by you for remittance to the appropriate taxing authority, and (c) the value of any allowance
issued or granted to any customer of the business that is credited in full or partial satisfaction of the price
of any services and products offered in connection with the business. This is a fee that you pay to us, and
not a contribution to an advertising fund or any kind of group or pooled advertising program. We will place
all Brand Building Fund Fees we receive in the Brand Building Fund and we will manage such Fund. Upon
written request, we will provide you with an annual unaudited statement of the receipts and disbursements
of the Brand Building Fund for the most recent calendar year. We do not perform an audit of the Brand
Building Fund. Any end-of-year surpluses in the Fund ina-given—yearwill carry over to the next year. In
consideration for this Fee, we provide general marketing and promotional services, and other efforts to
support the generation of sales appointments, for the 9ROUND brand. These services may include any or
all of the following: creative development services (such as designing new logos, graphics, and promotional
pieces), public relations services, IROUND annual conference expenses, web design and hosting services,
national engine optimization, marketing and brand reputation tools and services, technology investments,
digital and social media content creation, digital marketing, developing and implementing promotions, tie-
ins, contests, or sweepstakes, direct mail advertising, sponsorships and endorsements, trade association
memberships (such as IHRSA), and reimbursing us the costs of administering the Brand Building Fund,
including employee salaries and benefits. Services may be provided by in-house personnel or third-party
service providers and vendors.

The Brand Building Fund is not a trust or escrow account, and we have no fiduciary obligations regarding
the Brand Building Fund. We cannot ensure that any individual franchisee will benefit directly or on a pro
rata basis from the future placement of any such advertising in its local market. We may spend in any fiscal
year an amount greater or less than the aggregate contributions of System businesses to the Brand Building
Fund in that year. We will determine the methods of advertising, media employed, and scope, contents,
terms and conditions of advertising, marketing, promotional, and public relations campaigns and programs.
Payments are accounted for as general operating revenue, and we do not provide a separate accounting for
how this revenue is spent. Any end-of-year surpluses in the Brand Building Fund in-a-gtven-rearwill carry
over to the next year. We do not perform an audit to the Brand Building Fund nor do we make financial
statements available.

For the most recently concluded fiscal year, advertising funds have been spent as follows:
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Type of Expenditure Percentage
Production 10-65%
Media Placement 31-750%
Public Relations 0%

Brand Development 0%
Marketing Software 399536%
Website Design 0-4+4+%
Administrative Expenses +75455%
Total 100%

We are not required to spend any particular amount on marketing, advertising, or production in the area in
which your Center is located. We may make loans to the Brand Building Fund bearing reasonable interest
to cover any deficit of the Brand Building Fund and cause the Brand Building Fund to invest in a surplus
for future use by the Brand Building Fund. Brand Building Fund Fees will not be used for advertising
principally directed at the sale of franchises. The company-owned locations also contribute to the Brand
Building Fund.

Local Marketing Fund or Cooperative; Franchisee Advertising Council

We have the right to designate, in our discretion, any geographical area in which at least two (2) 9ROUND
franchises are located as a “designated advertising area” for the purposes of establishing a Local Marketing
Fund that we control (“Local Marketing Fund”) or local or regional advertising cooperative controlled by its
members (“Cooperative”). If a Local Marketing Fund or Cooperative is established in your market, you will
be required to participate and contribute. Any amount contributed to a Local Marketing Fund or Advertising
Co-op will be in addition to, and not in lieu of, the Brand Building Fund Fee. We have the right to determine
the amount of contribution, in our sole judgment, provided that aggregate monthly contributions will not exceed
$750 per month (subject to adjustment for increases in the Consumer Price Index). Any contributions you make
to a Local Marketing Fund or Cooperative will count toward the minimum local advertising and marketing
expenditure described above.

If we have established a Cooperative in your area, you must participate in the Cooperative and its programs,
execute any participating documents we require and abide by its bylaws. A Cooperative may vote to increase
the required contribution amount referenced above if approved by members representing at least two-thirds
of the Centers in the Cooperative. Each Center in the Cooperative will have one (1) vote. Centers owned
by us and our affiliates will be a member of the Cooperative and will make the same contribution and have
the same voting rights as franchised locations. Each Cooperative will be required to adopt governing bylaws
that meet our approval and that we may require the Cooperative to amend from time to time. The
Cooperatives must submit to us its meeting minutes on our request. All advertising cooperatives must obtain
our written approval of all promotional and advertising materials, creative execution and media schedules
prior to their implementation. The members of each Cooperative and their elected officers will be
responsible for the administration of the Cooperative. If you wish to obtain an accounting of your local
Cooperative, you may do so by submitting your request in writing to the officers of the Cooperative. We
reserve the right to administer the Cooperatives’ funds and will require payment from its members via
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electronic funds transfer or collected through billing software with your monthly royalties. The governing
documents are available for review upon reasonable request. We reserve the right to require advertising and
marketing cooperatives to be formed, changed, dissolved, or merged.

In the future, we may elect to form an advertising council composed of franchisees to advise us on
advertising policies. As of the date of this disclosure document, there is no advertising council in effect for
the franchise system.

Technology System

You must acquire, maintain, and use all computer hardware and related accessories and peripheral
equipment, which currently includes, but is subject to change, the point of sale system;-emat-marketing
seftware, any 9Round app, body composition analyzer, music, heart rate monitor system, voice timer
system, daily workout screens system, 9Round workout system, customized managed network system,
security system and service, cloud-based security access, on-demand streaming service, and computer
system (collectively, the “Technology System”) that we require for use by the Center, and may not use any
cash registers or computer hardware, accessories, or peripheral equipment that we have not approved for use.
Requirements for use may include, among other things, connection to remote servers, remote control computer
software, off-site electronic repositories, high-speed internet connections, and establishment of one or more
e-mail accounts.

The daily workout screens system provides a screen at each workout station that demonstrates the training
for that individual station for the member to view and mimic. The system currently comprises of nine (9)
screens but is subject to change. The computers download the daily workout via cloud-based software. If
you choose to add the stretching station package, it includes a screen that demonstrates stretches for the
member to view and mimic. If you choose to add a digital advertising screen, it is a screen that dynamically
updates to display current products, promotions and services currently offered at the Center.

The voice timer system provides an automated voice and bell system of callouts to help guide the member
throughout the 9ROUND workout; and is currently equipped with an interface to select settings that best
fit the needs of the Center.

The 9Round workout system is software that synchronizes the daily workout system and the voice timer
system.

You must: (7) use any proprietary software programs, system documentation manuals, and other proprietary
materials that we provide to you in connection with your operation of the Center; (7i) input and maintain in
your computer such data and information as we require in the Manual and other written directives; (7ii)
purchase new or upgraded software programs, system documentation manuals, and other proprietary materials
at then-current prices whenever we adopt such new or upgraded programs, manuals, and materials system-
wide; and (iv) purchase from our approved supplier a 9ROUND music system which is currently
approximately $100 a month for each Center, depending on the subscription package you select; (v)
purchase from our approved supplier a security system and service, which includes cloud-based security
access, which is currently $437140 a month (vi) purchase from one of our approved suppliers a business
text messaging service, which currently ranges from $114 to $249 a month for a twelve (12) month
commitment, though pricing may be higher if you select month-to-month and (vii) purchase from our
approved supplier a customized managed network system and service, which includes regular software
updates and support and is currently $20 to $140 a month. You must enter into all software license
agreements, “terms of use” agreements, and software maintenance agreements, in the form and manner we
require, and pay all fees imposed by us or any third-party software and software service providers hereunder.
As technology or software is developed in the future, we may, in our sole discretion, require you to: (i) add to
your Technology System memory, ports, and other accessories or peripheral equipment or additional, new, or
substitute software; and (7i) replace or upgrade your Technology System and software at your sole expense.
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Subject to any applicable data protection and privacy laws or rules, the Technology System will collect and
compile customer identification data and other membership data. We may independently access from a
remote location, at any time, all information (including member information) input to and compiled by your
Technology System or an off-site server. We may independently access from a remote location, at any time,
the computer system to make remote changes. We may independently access from a remote location, at any
time, any camera or the security system to view and record any images and video.

The point-of-sale membership management equipment, including computer, printer, signature pad
(optional), and credit card reader, costs between $1,000 to $1,500. The credit and debit card processing
software is without initial charge at this time. Leasing is not available. You are obligated to repair and
maintain all point of sale and computer systems necessary for the operation of your business. We estimate
that this cost may be up to $300 per year. You are required to update and upgrade all necessary point of
sale and computer systems in response to changes in the Operating Manual, or changes in our policies that
are communicated to you in writing. There are no restrictions on the frequency or cost of such updating and
upgrades.

The daily workout screens system equipment is approximately $10,000 to $15,000 payable to approved
vendors. For new licenses, the installation costs for the daily workout screens system are payable as part of
the build-out costs for your new Center. For resales where you are purchasing an existing location, if not
already operational at the Center, installations costs for the daily workout screens system are part of the
modernization and are approximately $2,000 to $5,000 payable to approved vendors.

The PULSE heart rate zone system equipment initial outlay cost is approximately $1,400 to $2,400 for the
initial outlay.

The security system equipment, including cameras, door access and door strike, panic button, and cloud-
based security access is approximately $713,000 to $917,000 payable to approved vendors, and a monthly
fee payable to our approved vendor, which is currently $437140 per month. Members will need a door entry
key fob to gain entry to the Center. For new licenses, the installation costs for the security system are
payable as part of the build-out costs for your new Center. For resales where you are purchasing an existing
location, if the system is not already operational at the Center, installations costs for the security system are
part of the modernization. The Security System initial cost (see Item 7 for more details) includes fifty (50)
door entry key fobs. An additional box of door entry key fobs areis currently $250 each, subject to increase.

Site Selection

You will select the site for the Center within the Preliminary Designated Area that will be identified on the
Summary Page when you sign the Franchise Agreement. You will identify a site within the Preliminary
Designated Area (or if no sites are available in the Preliminary Designated Area, in proximity to it) for our
approval. In evaluating the site, we will consider the following factors: twenty-four (24) hour access,
demographics, visibility, ability to reflect image to be portrayed by 9ROUND businesses, accessibility and
parking, and market type (rural, suburban, and urban). Our then-current criteria for site selection may
include additional factors. Within fifteen (15) days after you have submitted all requested information
concerning the site, we will notify you whether or not the site is approved. You must acquire a site for the
Center within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the Franchise Agreement is signed, or we may
terminate the Franchise Agreement (Section 2B, 13B and 13D) or, at our election, may eliminate any
designated area protection afforded in the Franchise Agreement (Section 2B).

Typical Length of Time Before You Open Your Center

Franchisees typically begin operating their Centers within six (6) to twelve (12) months from the time they
sign the Franchise Agreement or pay any consideration for the franchise. Factors that may impact this time
period include the extent of your site selection activities after you sign the Franchise Agreement, local real
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estate market conditions, and the time it takes to prepare a site survey, negotiate with the landlord, finalize
your lease, complete leasehold improvements, and obtain necessary permits.

You must open the Center for business no later than twelve (12) months after the Franchise Agreement is
signed. If you fail to open a Center within the required time period, we may terminate the Franchise
agreement or, at our election, may eliminate any designated area protection afforded in the Franchise
Agreement by providing you written notice.

Manual

We will provide you with an electronic copy of our Operating Manual, which currently consists of fifty-six
(56) pages and is a definitive source of information that includes brand standards and information on how
to run your 9Round Center. The Table of Contents for the Operating Manual including number of pages on
each subject, is included herein as Exhibit E. In addition to the Operating Manual, we also communicate
operations information to franchisees through system bulletins, newsletters, and our online franchisee
portal.

INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM

We will provide the following initial training to at least two (2) people in your organization. Unless we agree
in writing that you may designate someone else to attend training, you (or each owner of the franchisee
entity) must complete the initial training program to our satisfaction within thirty (30) days of signing your
location lease. If you have a general manager, he or she must also complete training to our satisfaction. We
do not charge for this training, but you must pay the travel and living expenses and supply costs for you
and your employees. Our training program is five (5) days and includes:

Classroom On The
Subject Job Location
Hours o
Training
The 9ROUND System 2 Hours 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify.
9ROUND Standards, Client 1 Hour 2 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Satisfaction and Retention
9ROUND Workout Stations, 3 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Boxing and Kickboxing Disciplines
Equipment Specifications and 1 Hour 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Cleanliness of Center
Floor Design 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Safety Procedures 1 Hour 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Teaching Techniques 1 Hour 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Business Operations 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Kickboxology 2 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Merchandising, Supplements 2 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Product Sales, and Promotions
Floor Operations and Drills 1 Hour 3 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Membership Packages and 1 Hour 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Overcoming Client Objections
Training Clients and Workout 3 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Daily Operations and Checklists 1 Hour 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Technology and Web Site 1 Hour 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Administrative and Bookkeeping 2 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Responsibilities
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Classroom On The
Subject Job Location
Hours o
Training
Training Clients and Workout 4 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Starting Your 9ROUND Business 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Marketing Your Business Foeto 25 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Attract Clients
Strategic Planning 2 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Staffing and Working with Trainers 1 Hour Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Boxing and Kickboxing Disciplines 3 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Wrap Up and Application of 2-4 Hours Greenville, SC or as we otherwise specify
Classroom and Center Trainings
Total 24-26 27 Hours
27-29
Hours

The training program will be conducted by or under the supervision of Shannon Hudson and Heather
Hudson, and other instructors as we designate periodically. Shannon Hudson has been immersed in martial
arts and fitness training since 1987 and has been with us since our inception in 2008. Heather Hudson has
been involved in martial arts and fitness training since 2005 and has been with us since our inception in
2008. The training is subject to change.

Periodically, we may offer ongoing training programs and we may charge a fee for attending these training
programs. Currently, our fee ranges from $99 to $500 per person, plus the wages, travel and living expenses,
and supply costs for you and your employees. If our representative provides additional training at your
Center, we may require you to reimburse us our related out-of-pocket costs. If you designate a new general
manager after the initial training program, the new general manager must complete the training to our
satisfaction. We reserve the right to charge a fee to train any replacement general manager. We have the
right to develop certification programs for Center personnel who provide personal fitness instruction, teach
any form of exercise, or provide any kind of fitness or nutrition instruction or counseling. If we implement
a certification program for a particular service provider, the service provider must become certified and
comply with all certification requirements before providing services. We may charge a fee which you must
pay for providing certification-related courses and services. In addition, we may hold and require that your
Principal Owner (a person who owns a 25% or greater interest in the franchisee entity) and general manager
or other designated employees attend, at your expense, any conference, meeting, convention, or seminar to
present new methods and programs for operation, training, management, sales, or marketing.

We currently offer a personal training service that offers boxing and kickboxing training and certification
to franchise owners. Once trained by us, subject to local laws and regulations, you can offer one-on-one
boxing and kickboxing themed personal training to members. You may charge a fee to members for the
personal training services in addition to their monthly membership. Our current fee to you for the initial

trainingand-onboarding of the personal training service-is-$1+99—Thereafterthe-current-feefor-ongoing
tratning-and-supportis-$99-permenth, which includes access to the dedicated personal training database in

the franchisee portal, which-ineludes-instructional documentation and videos-, is $500 for the initial Center
and $200 per additional Center. The initial fee and-ongoingfees-are-is subject to CPI increase. We may
collect the feesfee through billing software. Although you are not currently required to offer personal
training services to members, we reserve the right to require you to offer personal training services, subject
to local laws and regulations, to members and non-members in the future.
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ITEM 12
TERRITORY

When the Franchise Agreement is signed, you will select a general geographic area in which you intend to
operate your Center (“Preliminary Designated Area”). We generally will approve your selection unless we
determine, in our sole judgment, that it may negatively affect the interest of another 9ROUND franchisee
or a franchisee from a different system we have an interest in or is otherwise unavailable for development
under our current policies, including twenty-four (24) hour access.

Your Preliminary Designated Area will be identified on the Summary Page of the Franchise Agreement.
Within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the Franchise Agreement is signed, you must acquire a site
for the Center within the Preliminary Designated Area. If no sites are available in the Preliminary
Designated Area, we generally will approve a site in proximity to the Preliminary Designated Area that
meets with our then-current site selection criteria. Once you have acquired the site, we will amend the
Franchise Agreement to reflect the site (which will become the Center’s “Authorized Location™) and to
define your “Designated Area” around the Authorized Location. If your approved site is within the
Preliminary Designated Area, your Designated Area will be substantially the same as your Preliminary
Designated Area in terms of size, shape, or demographics. Once defined on Attachment A of the Franchise
Agreement, your Designated Area will remain constant throughout the initial term of the franchise.

A minimum Designated Area will consist of one (1) city block and, in suburban and rural areas, may be as
large as a three (3)-mile driving distance from the anticipated location. The actual size and boundaries of
your Designated Area will depend upon a variety of factors, including the shared territory with another
9ROUND Center or center from a different system we have an interest in, if any; population base; median
age; income level; density of population; growth trends of population; the density of residential and business
entities; and major topographical features which clearly define contiguous areas, like rivers, mountains,
major freeways, and underdeveloped land areas.

Unless approved by us, all membership sales must be made face-to-face, although you may solicit
membership sales within your Designated Area by mail, telemarketing (so long as you abide by all
applicable federal, state, and local laws and the no-call lists), and other non-face-to-face basis. You may
solicit, advertise, and accept memberships online or outside your Designated Area only with our prior
approval or according to our then-current policies. There are no other restrictions on your right to solicit or
accept memberships inside or outside of your Designated Area. You may not sell merchandise or services
through other channels of distribution such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct
marketing without our prior written approval.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets
we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. During the term of
this Agreement, however, neither we nor our affiliates will develop or operate, or grant to anyone else the
right to develop or operate, a 9ROUND Center physically located in the Designated Area. We and our
affiliates have the right to develop and operate and grant others the right to develop and operate 9ROUND
Centers outside the Designated Area, regardless of their proximity to the Designated Area or any negative
impact they may have on your Center. We have the right to develop and sell, or authorize others to develop and
sell, online memberships for streaming live and on-demand workouts nationwide, including in your territory.

Our Affiliate 9RHC owns the I LOVE KICKBOXING™ franchise system. 9RHC offers I LOVE
KICKBOXING franchises under the I LOVE KICKBOXING™ trade name, which offers boxing and
kickboxing physical fitness training programs through scheduled classes in a group environment with
instructional staff and which includes a proprietary system of challenging workouts. We will not operate,
franchise, or license the operation of a new I LOVE KICKBOXING™ location inside your Designated Area:
or authorize licensees to offer | LOVE KICKBOXING™ classes from a location inside your Designated Area.
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We also have the right to develop and operate, and grant others the right to develop and operate, fitness centers
and other businesses under a different trademark within and outside the Designated Area, which may be
similar to or competitive with 9ROUND Centers. We will not operate, franchise, or license the operation
of a fitness center with 90% or more of its business based on a boxing and kickboxing circuit training
program in your Designated Area, except in connection with our acquisition of a multi-unit brand. If we
acquire a multi-unit brand (through a stock purchase, asset purchase, merger, or otherwise), we or our
affiliate may operate, franchise, or license the operation of the acquired brand within and outside the
Designated Area without offering any rights to you.

Certain locations are by their nature unique and separate in character from sites generally developed as
9ROUND Centers (“Special Sites”). These Special Sites are excluded from the Designated Area and we
have the right to develop, license or franchise Centers at these locations within or outside your Designated
Area: (1) military bases; (2) public transportation facilities, including, without limitation, airports, limited
access highway travel plazas and other transportation terminals; (3) sports facilities, including race tracks,
big-box fitness facilities, gyms, or sports clubs; (4) student unions or other similar buildings on college or
university campuses; (5) hotels, resorts, or similar short-term lodging; (6) apartment or condominium
complexes; and (7) corporate office buildings or office parks.

We reserve to ourselves all other rights to use the System and Marks anywhere and in any manner including,
without limitation, the right to offer, sell or distribute items such as workout and training videos, equipment,
athletic gear, etc., associated with the System (now or in the future) or identified by the Marks, or any other
trademarks, service marks or trade names, through any distribution channels or methods, without compensation
to any franchisee. These distribution channels or methods may include, without limitation, retail stores, mail
order, wholesale, or the internet (or any other existing or future form of electronic commerce). Our reserved
rights also include the right to provide and to license third parties to provide the 9ROUND program, and other
ancillary programs developed by or for us or our affiliates, at host locations (such as apartments, condo
associations, corporate office buildings, schools, community centers, and other gyms and fitness centers).

There are no restrictions on our rights to solicit or accept orders in or outside of your Designated Area. We are
not required to compensate you for soliciting or accepting orders in the Designated Area.

Except for the territorial protections described above, you may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

Continuation of your Designated Area does not depend on the achievement of a certain sales volume,
market penetration, or other contingency. You do not have any right to sublicense or sub-franchise within
or outside of the Designated Area. You do not receive the right to acquire additional franchises within or
outside of your Designated Area (although we may allow you to open another Center if you sign another
Franchise Agreement with us and meet our requirements).

If you fail to acquire a site for the Center within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the Franchise
Agreement is signed, instead of terminating the Agreement, we may amend the Franchise Agreement to
eliminate the Authorized Location, Designated Area, or Preliminary Designated Area protection and open that
area for development by us or another franchisee. If you participate in the Market Accelerator Program and fail
to meet the deadlines for one or more Centers, we may eliminate the Authorized Location, Designated Area,
or Preliminary Designated Area protection for the remaining Franchise Agreements for Centers yet to be
developed (but not for any Center that is already open). We also may unilaterally modify your Designated
Area upon renewal or if you transfer your franchise rights (see Item 17). Other than described above, we
have no right to modify your territorial rights except by mutual written consent of the parties.

You may relocate your Center under certain circumstances and subject to our approval. You must pay us a
relocation fee in connection with any relocation of your Center. If you need to relocate because of
condemnation, destruction, or expiration or cancellation of your lease for reasons other than your breach, we
will permit you to relocate the Center to a site that is acceptable to us, that is within your Designated Area, that

9ROUND® 38
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT — 26242025 v.1.90



is reasonably suited for a Center, and that does not infringe on the rights of any other 9ROUND franchisee.
The new Center must be open and operating within sixty (60) days after you discontinue operation at the present
Center. If you voluntarily decide to relocate the Center, you must notify us of your intent to relocate and ensure
that the present Center remains open and operating for usual business while you procure a new site within your
Designated Area. Once you notify us of your proposed site, we will notify you of our approval or rejection
within fifteen (15) days of receipt. Once approved, you have sixty (60) days to relocate to the newly procured
site within your Designated Area, and upon closing the present Center you must open the new Center for
business within seven (7) days after closing the present Center. You must comply with any other conditions
that we reasonably require during the relocation process. You must pay the costs of any relocation, and we
reserve the right to charge you for any reasonable costs that we incur. Upon relocation of your Center for any
reason, we may modify your Designated Area, in our sole judgment, to take into account the designated areas
of neighboring Centers and other factors. We have the right to refuse to consent to a relocation if you lose the
right to occupy the Center premises because of the termination of your lease due to your breach.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

We own the following Marks, which are registered on the Principal Register of the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office. All required affidavits have been filed. We maintain our registrations and those Marks
noted with an asterisk (*) have been subject to the relevant Declarations of Use and Incontestability under
Sections 8 and 15 of the Lanham Act.

Trademark Resister Registration Registration /
g [ Filing Date Application Number
9ROUND* July 22,2014 4571726
Principal
July 17,2022 6797212
; 30 MIN KICKBOX FITNESS L. Pl—m(ﬂ'pﬁ‘l ’
9R* May 12, 2015 4736191
Principal
July 12,2022 6789135
@ . Principal September 22, 2015 4818919
9ROUND PULSE* Principal June 27, 2017 5233947
[a] n 2
=
Er UNLGE* Principal June 27, 2017 5233948
TRAIN. TRACK. TRIUMPH. Principal June 27, 2017 5233949
KICKBOXOLOGY Principal August 7, 2018 5536965
STRONGER IN 30 MINUTES Principal February 12,2019 5674684
KICKBOX DETOX Principal December 10, 2019 5934186
9RNOW June 6, 2023 7076225
Principal December 19, 2023 7249957
December 19, 2023 7249958
July 12,2022 6788322
NOW Principal February 7, 2023 6970972
June 6, 2023 7076227
9ROUNDNOW Principal January 17, 2023 6952528
9ROUNDNOW Principal January 17, 2023 6952531
March 14, 2023 7002025
9ROUND L March 14, 2023 7002026
Principal
March 14, 2023 7002027
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There are no agreements currently in effect which significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of
the marks in any manner material to you.

You may not make any changes or substitutions of any kind in or to the use of the Marks unless we direct
in writing. We may change the System presently identified by the Marks including the adoption of new
Marks, new program offerings, new equipment or new techniques and you must adopt the changes in the
System, as if they were part of the Franchise Agreement at the time of its execution. You must comply, at
your cost, within a reasonable time if we notify you to discontinue or modify your use of any Mark. We
will have no liability or obligation as to your modification or discontinuance of any Mark. Any goodwill
resulting from your use of the Marks inures to our benefit.

There are currently no effective material determinations by the United States Patent and Trademark Office,
the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state, or any court, or any
pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding, or any pending material litigation, involving
the Marks. There are no infringing uses actually known to us that could materially affect your use of the
Marks.

If there is any infringement of, or challenge to, your use of the Marks, you must immediately notify us, and
we will take action that we deem appropriate. We have the right to control all administrative proceedings
and litigation involving the Marks. The Franchise Agreement does not require us to take affirmative action
if notified of the claim. The Franchise Agreement also does not require us to participate in your defense or
to indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are a party to an administrative or judicial proceeding
based on your use of the Marks, or if the proceeding is resolved unfavorably to you. If we determine that a
trademark infringement action requires changes or substitutions to the Marks, you must make the changes
or substitutions at your own expense.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no registered copyrights or patents, or pending patent applications, material to the franchise. We
claim copyright protection, however, for several elements of the System including the design elements of
our Marks, and the content of our Manual, training materials, website, 9RoundNOW, daily workout screens
system, voice timer system, and promotional and other materials.

There are currently no effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress), United States
Patent and Trademark Office, Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences, or any court, or any pending
infringement, opposition, or cancellation proceeding or any pending material litigation involving any
patents or copyrights. There are no infringing uses actually known to us that could materially affect your
use of the patents or copyrights.

We are not obligated to protect you against infringement or unfair competition claims arising out of your
use of any patents or copyrights, or to participate in your defense or indemnify you. We reserve the right to
control any litigation related to any patents and copyrights and we have the sole right to decide to pursue
or settle any infringement actions related to the patents or copyrights. You must notify us promptly of any
infringement or unauthorized use of the patents or copyrights of which you become aware.

You must keep confidential during and after the term of the Franchise Agreement all proprietary
information, including but not limited to the manuals. Upon termination of your Franchise Agreement, you
must return to us all proprietary information, including but not limited to the manuals and all other copyright
material. You must notify us immediately if you learn about an unauthorized use of proprietary information.
We are not obligated to take any action and we have the sole right to decide the appropriate response to any
unauthorized use of proprietary information. You must comply with all changes to the manuals at your cost.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, you (if franchisee is an individual) or your general manager
must devote sufficient time and best efforts to the management of the Center. You are expected to stay
informed about our organizational plans, initiatives, and direction by regular review of communications
sent to you electronically or otherwise.

You or your general manager must provide direct on-premises supervision to the Center. The general
manager must complete our training course. He or she need not have any equity interest in the franchisee
or the business entity that owns or operates the franchise. If he or she fails to satisfactorily complete the
training program, you may designate a different individual and you must notify us immediately. We may
request that you are present at the Center for any inspection or evaluation we conduct.

All officers, directors, members and all managers, instructors and other employees having access to our
proprietary information must execute non-disclosure agreements in a form we accept. If we so require_and
subject to applicable law, your managers, instructors, and other employees receiving training must execute
covenants not to compete in a form that we approve.

Any individual or entity that holds, directly or indirectly, any equity interest in the franchisee must sign a
personal guaranty. If this is your second or additional franchise, your entity must sign a corporate guaranty.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON LOCATION AND WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer at the Center all of the products, equipment and services that we periodically require and
you may not offer at the Center any unapproved products or use the premises for any purpose other than
the operation of the Center. We have the unlimited right to change the types of authorized services you may
offer.

If permitted by state and local law, you must be open for business for the numbers of days and hours we
require, currently twenty-four (24) hours per day throughout the year, which includes a minimum of twenty-
two (22) instructional staffed (‘trainer led”) hours per week, Monday to Saturday (equivalent of four (4)
staffed hours per day, Monday to Friday, and two (2) staffed hours on Saturday). You may solicit and accept
Memberships within your Designated Area. We may periodically negotiate contracts with corporations,
affinity groups, and insurance plans that will require that certain terms or discounts be offered to members
of that corporation, affinity group, or insurance plan by all franchisees at all locations (“National
Accounts™). You must provide the special terms and discounts to these National Accounts. You are not
otherwise limited in the customers to whom you may sell products or services.

You may not install or maintain on the Center premises any gaming, entertainment, or vending machine
without our prior written approval and you must agree to participate in any vending or media program we
establish for the System.

Y ou must participate in all marketing promotions that we prescribe, including price promotions to the extent
permitted by applicable law. We also have the right to establish your membership and retail prices to the
extent permitted by applicable law.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 17

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement and related agreements.
You should read these provisions in the Agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other Agreement

Summary

a. | Length of the franchise term

Section 4A

Term is ten (10) years.

b. | Renewal or extension of the
term

Section 4B

Renewal for one (1) additional ten{1+6five
(5)-year term.

c. | Requirements for franchisee
to renew or extend

Section 4B

You must meet our then-current criteria and
qualifications for new franchising; you must
give us written notice of your decision to
renew at least six (6) months but not more than
twelve (12) months before the end of the
expiring term; you must sign our then-current
form of Franchise Agreement, the terms and
conditions of which may be materially
different than the terms and conditions of our
current Franchise Agreement and which may
contain terms less favorable to you, including
different fees and a different Designated Area,
and, as applicable, a renewal instrument
amending relevant terms of the new Franchise
Agreement, or an instrument extending for the
duration of the renewal term, all covenants,
conditions and provisions of your existing
Franchise Agreement; you must pay a renewal
fee; you must have complied with the
modernization requirements for your Center;
you are not in default and have satisfied your
obligations on a timely basis; if leasing, you
have written proof of your ability to remain in
possession of the Center premises throughout
the renewal term and provide any then-
required lease addendum; you comply with our
training requirements; and you sign a release
(provided that any release will not be
inconsistent with any state law regulating
franchising).

9ROUND®

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT — 26242025

45

v.1.90




Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other Agreement

Summary

Termination by franchisee

e

Section 13B

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement
only for a material breach by us, provided you
give us written notice of the breach and allow
at least sixty (60) days’ notice and opportunity
to cure such breach and, if not cured, wait
ninety (90) days from the original notice of
breach before terminating the Franchise
Agreement. This provision is subject to state
laws.

e. | Termination by franchisor
without cause

Not applicable

Not applicable.

f. | Termination by franchisor

Sections 13A

We can terminate the Franchise Agreement
only if you default or fail to comply with your
obligations.

Sections 13A and
13B

You have ten (10) days to cure the non-
submission of reports and non-payment of
amounts due and owing; seven (7) days to cure
defaults relating to misuse of our Marks and
the sale of unauthorized products and services;
and thirty (30) days to cure defaults for the
failure to abide by our other standards and
requirements in connection with the operation
of your business, and any other default not
listed in h below.

with cause
g. | “Cause” defined — curable
defaults
9RoUND®
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Section in

curable defaults

13B

Provision Franchise or Summary
Other Agreement
h. | “Cause” defined — non- Sections 13A and Non-curable defaults include: failure to

acquire a site for the Center within one
hundred and twenty (120) days after the
Franchise Agreement is signed, or to open the
Center for business within nine (9) months
after the Franchise Agreement is signed,
abandonment, loss of lease, the failure to
timely cure a default under the lease, the loss
of your right of possession or failure to
relocate, closing of Center, insolvency,
unapproved  assignments or transfers,
convictions, intentionally understating or
underreporting Memberships or fees, multiple
defaults, or failure to cure within seven (7)
days of notice a default which materially
impairs the goodwill associated with any of
our Marks. We also may terminate the franchise
agreement in the event of (1) termination, on
account of your default, of any other franchise
agreement between you or your affiliate and us
or (2) abandonment or unauthorized closure of
any other Center operated under a franchise
agreement between you or your affiliate and us.

i. | Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

Sections 10D and
14A-C

Obligations include complete de-identification
and payment of amounts due, assignment of
your lease to us upon our demand, assignment
to us of your telephone numbers, return of
manuals and proprietary materials, refunding
members, and our right to purchase assets of
the Center (also see (0 ) and ( r) below).

j- | Assignment of contract by
franchisor

Section 11F

No restriction on our right to assign.

k. | “Transfer” by franchisee —
defined

Section 11A

Includes any transfer of your interest in the
Franchise Agreement or in the business or any
ownership change listed in Section 11A of the
Franchise Agreement.

. | Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Section 11B

We have the right to approve all transfers but
will not unreasonably withhold approval.

m. | Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

Sections 11B-D

Transferee meets all of our then-current
requirements for one of the franchise
development programs then being offered,
transferee must sign our then-current form of
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other Agreement

Summary

Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions
of which may be materially different than the
terms and conditions of our current Franchise
Agreement and which may contain terms less
favorable to the transferee, including different
fees and a different Designated Area; all
amounts owed by prior franchisee paid,
required modernization is completed, training
completed, required guaranties signed,
necessary financial reports and other data on
franchise business is prepared, and release
signed by you (provided release will not be
inconsistent with any state law regulating
franchising (also see ( r ) below).

n. | Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire franchisee’s
business

Section 11E

We can match any offer for your Center assets
and, in the case of a proposed stock sale, we
can purchase your Center assets at a price
determined by an appraiser, unless you and we
agree otherwise.

o. | Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s business

Section 14B

Upon expiration or termination, we have the
right to assume your lease for the Center
premises, to assume all membership contracts,
to assume all telephone numbers used in
connection with the operation of your Center,
and to purchase or designate a third party that
will purchase all or any portion of the assets of
your Center, including the equipment, fixtures,
signs, furnishings, supplies, leasehold
improvements and inventory. Qualified
appraiser(s) will determine price as described
in the Franchise Agreement.

p- | Death or disability of

Section 11D

You can transfer your franchise right to your

franchisee heir or successor in interest like any other
transfer, but if assignee is an existing
franchisee, your spouse or your child, no initial
Franchise Fee is required.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other Agreement

Summary

Non-competition covenants
during the term of the
franchise

Section 10D

No direct or indirect involvement in the
operation of any big box fitness center or a
fitness center, club, studio, online fitness
service, or exercise facility featuring boxing,
kickboxing, or circuit training program in the
United States, other than the one (1) authorized
in the Franchise Agreement. Non-compliance
provisions are subject to state law.

fig

Non-competition covenants
after the franchise is
terminated or expired

Section 10D

No direct or indirect involvement in a
competing business for eighteen (18) years at
the premises of the former Center; within ten
(10) miles of the former Center; within any
other franchisee’s Designated Area; or within
ten (10) miles of any other business or Center
using the System. Non-compliance provisions
are subject to state law.

Modification of agreement

Section 15B

We reserve the right to modify parts of this
Agreement such as the Marks or your
Designated Area as we deem appropriate.

Integration/merger clause

Section 15B

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are
binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises outside of the
Franchise Disclosure Document and other
agreements may not be enforceable. We do not
disclaim any representations made in this
Franchise Disclosure Document.

Dispute resolution by
mediation

Section 12A

Except for certain claims, all disputes must
first be submitted to mediation.

Choice of forum

Section 151

Litigation must be in the city where our
corporate headquarters are located (currently,
Simpsonville, South Carolina), except as
restricted or prohibited by applicable state law
regulating franchising.

Choice of law

Section 15H

South Carolina law governs construction of the
Franchise Agreement and the parties’
relationship, except as restricted or prohibited
by applicable state law regulating franchising.
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ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We currently do not use any public figure to promote our franchise; however, in the future and in our sole
discretion, we may use social media influencers to promote the 9ROUND brand.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information
and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance information that
differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an
existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this
Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under
particular circumstances.
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representatrons about a franchlsee s future financial performance or the past financial performance of
company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make
any such representations either orally or in writing. HHowever, if you are purchasing an existing outlet;
however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial
performance information or pro_]ect1ons of y;future 1ncome you should report it to the franchlsor s
management by contacting-Shannen : -
HHE e e 00 legal@strlkmgbrands com, the Federal Trade Commlss10n and the approprlate state
regulatory agencies.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 20212022 to 20242023

Outlet Type Year Outlets andat the Start of Outlets at the End of Net
yp the Year the Year Change
2022202+ 439 1487 438365 -4974
Franchised 20222023 365439-F 365275 -7490
20232024 365275 275199 -9676
2022202+ 76 6 -10
Company 20232022 6 64 0-2
Owned —
20232024 64 41 -23
2022202+ 445 '494 444371 -5074
Total Outlets 20232622 371445+ 37279 -7492
20242623 3H279 279200 -9279

Note 1: Variations due to previous years’ miscounts.

Table 2

Transfers of Qutlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than Franchisor)

For Years 20212022 to 20242023

State Year Number of Transfers
20222624+ 61
Alabama 20232022 13
20242023 31
20222621 0
Arizona 20222023 01
20242623 10
20222624+ 63
California 20232022 31
202420623 10
20222621 1
Colorado 20232022 10
202420623 0
20222621 0
Connecticut 20232022 0
20242623 0
20222621 0
Delaware 20232022 0
20242623 0
20222624+ 43
Florida 20232022 32
20242023 2
Georgia 2022202+ 0
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State Year Number of Transfers
20232022 61
20242623 +0
20222624+ 01
I1linois 20232022 10
20242023 0
20222021 10
Indiana 20232022 0
20242023 01
20222021 0
lowa 20232022 0
20242023 0
20222021 0
Kansas 20232022 0
20232024 0
20222021 0
Kentucky 20232022 0
20232024 0
20222021 01
Maryland 20232022 10
20232024 0
20222021 1
Massachusetts 20232022 10
20232024 062
20222021 0
Michigan 20232622 61
20232024 10
20222624+ 01
Minnesota 20232022 1
20232024 10
20222021 32
Missouri 20232022 23
20232024 30
20222021 0
Nebraska 20232022 0
20232024 0
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State Year Number of Transfers
20222024 +0
Nevada 20232022 0
20232024 02
202220621 02
New Hampshire 20232022 20
20232024 0
202220621 0
New York 20232022 0
20232024 0
20222021 42
North Carolina 20232022 2
20232024 21
20222021 0
Ohio 20232922 61
20232024 10
202220621 0
Oregon 20232022 0
20232024 0
202220621 10
Pennsylvania 20232022 0
20232024 0
20222021 20
South Carolina 20232022 0
20232024 0
20222021 0
South Dakota 20232022 0
20232024 0
20222021 01
Tennessee 20232022 1
20232024 10
20222021 93
Texas 20232022 36
20232024 61
20222021 01
Utah 20232022 10
20232024 0
20222021 02
Virginia 20232622 21
20232024 1
20222021 2
Washington 20232622 20
20232024 2
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State Year Number of Transfers
20222624+ 10
Wisconsin 20232022 0
20232024 0
2022202+ 3627
Total 20232022 27
20232024 2711
Table 3
Status of Franchise Outlets
For Years 20212022 to 20242023
Outlets Reacquired Cease.:d Outlets at
State Year | at Start e Terminations Non- by Operations End of
of Year Opened Renewals Franchisor vt Year
Reasons
2022 138 0 40 0 0 062 86
Alabama 2023 86 0 0 0 0 20 6
Lo 6 0 062 0 0 0 64
Lol 76 0 140 0 0 61 65
Arizona 2023 65 0 02 0 0 10 33
Lo 53 0 21 0 0 0 32
2022 3 0 61 0 0 0 32
Arkansas 2022 32 0 10 0 0 0 2
Lo 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2022 7269 52 743 0 0 +4 6964
California 2023 6964 21 310 0 0 46 6449
Lo 6449 1 108 03 0 60 4939
2022 211 21 0 0 0 30 H12
Colorado 2023 H12 10 05 0 0 01 126
Lo 126 0 53 0 0 10 63
2022 3 0 61 0 0 062 30
Connecticut 2023 30 0 10 0 0 20 0
Lo 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 54 0 140 0 0 0 4
Delaware 2022 4 0 02 0 0 0 42
Lo 42 0 21 0 0 0 21
o 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
78 S S R
Lo 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 5150 21 247 0 0 15 5639
Florida 2023 5639 10 9 0 0 54 3924
Lo 3924 61 97 23 0 41 2414
] 2022 1613 10 31 0 0 13 139
Georgia 2023 | 439 0 14 0 0 31 94
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Ceased

Outlets Outlets o Non- Reacquired Operations Outlets at
State Year | at Start Terminations by End of
of Year Dee Renewals Franchisor — (e Year
Reasons
2023 94 0 40 0 0 10 4
2022 1 0 01 0 0 0 10
Idaho 2023 10 0 10 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 H9 0 10 0 0 10 9
Illinois 2023 9 01 01 0 0 0 9
2023 9 10 10 0 0 0 9
2022 +H10 0 12 0 0 0 168
Indiana 2023 108 0 20 0 0 0 8
2023 8 0 02 0 0 0 86
2022 23 10 0 0 0 0 3
Iowa 2023 3 0 01 0 0 0 32
2023 32 0 10 0 0 0 2
2022 827 0 01 0 0 0 76
Kansas 2023 76 0 1 0 0 01 64
2023 64 0 1 0 0 10 43
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Kentucky 2023 1 0 01 0 0 0 10
2023 10 0 10 0 0 0 0
2022 2 0 01 0 0 0 21
Louisiana 2023 21 0 1 0 0 0 10
2023 10 0 10 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Maine 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Maryland 2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2022 54 10 0 0 0 20 4
Massachusetts 2023 4 61 01 0 0 0 4
2023 4 10 10 0 0 0 4
2022 84 0 01 0 0 40 43
Michigan 2023 43 0 1 0 0 0 32
2023 32 0 1 0 0 0 21
2022 75 0 0 0 0 21 54
Minnesota 2023 34 0 0 0 0 10 4
2023 4 0 01 0 0 0 43
2022 | 24715 0 340 0 0 40 15
Missouri 202t
2023 15 0 03 01 0 0 4511
2022
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Ceased

Outlets Reacquired . Outlets at
State Year | at Start S OGS Terminations s by QI LHENIS End of
of Year ORerce R Franchisor — (e Year
Reasons
S 1511 0 31 1 0 0 H9
2024
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20t
2023 3 0 01 0 0 01 31
Montana 2020
2023 31 0 1 0 0 10 10
2024
2022 635 0 0 0 0 0 5
20t
2023 5 0 01 0 0 0 53
Nebraska 2022
20 53 0 12 0 0 10 31
2024
2022 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
2021
023 4 0 01 0 0 0 43
Nevada 2022
S 43 0 1 0 0 0 32
2024
2022 169 0 02 0 0 13 94
2021
New 2023 94 0 20 0 0 30 4
Hampshire 2022
S 4 0 01 0 0 0 43
2024
2022 31 0 10 0 0 10 1
20t
New Jersey 2023 ! 0 0 0 0 oL 0
2022
20 10 0 0 0 0 10 0
2024
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20t
. 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
New Mexico 2020
S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024
2022 6 0 0 0 0 0 6
2021
023 6 0 0 0 0 0 6
New York 2022
S0 6 0 01 0 0 0 65
2024
2022 28229 01 1+4 0 0 01 2925
2021
. 2023 2925 10 42 0 0 10 2523
North Carolina 2022
20 2523 0 21 0 0 0 2322
2024
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Ceased

Outlets Reacquired . Outlets at
Outlets s Non- Operations
State Year | at Start Terminations by End of
Opened Renewals . — Other
of Year Franchisor Year
Reasons
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021
North Dakota | 20> | 7 0 0 0 0 0 0
S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024
2022 128 0 443 0 0 0 35
St
. 2023 85 0 30 0 0 0 5
Ohio 2022
S 5 0 01 0 0 0 54
2024
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St
Oklahoma 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Oregon 2023 3 0 01 0 0 0 32
2023 32 0 1 0 0 0 21
2022 53 0 10 0 0 10 3
Pennsylvania 2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2022 H411 01 01 0 1 21 H9
South Carolina | 2023 H9 10 1 0 10 1 97
2023 97 0 12 02 0 10 73
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Outlets Reacquired Ceasc?d Outlets at
State Year | at Start Outlets Terminations Non- by Operations End of
of Year Djpe] LO GRS Franchisor — (s Year
Reasons
2022 31 0 0 0 0 20 1
South Dakota 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Lo 1 0 01 0 0 0 10
2022 43 0 10 0 0 0 3
Tennessee 2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Lo 3 01 01 0 0 0 3
2022 84282 31 2+12 0 0 413 8258
Texas 2023 | 8258 10 216 0 0 1 5841
Lo 5841 0 1613 02 0 1 4425
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Utah 2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 03 0 0 0 30
2022 01 10 0 0 0 0 1
Vermont 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Lo 1 0 01 0 0 0 10
2022 1038 0 +1 0 0 0 87
Virginia 2023 87 0 1 0 0 0 7
2023 7 10 12 0 0 0 75
2022 13 0 0 0 0 0 13
Washington 2023 13 0 02 01 0 02 138
2023 138 01 24 10 0 20 85
2022 1614 0 062 0 0 20 1412
Wisconsin 2023 1412 0 20 01 0 01 1210
Lo 1210 0 61 1 0 10 168
2021 | 487439 167 3444 0 1 3236 4382365
Totals 2023 439 74 4468 0 10 3621 365275
2023 | 365275 4 6866 512 0 242 275199

Note 1: These franchisees voluntarily abandoned their 9Round Center.

Note 2: Variations due to previous years’ miscounts.
N a - \\ hinaotan 1 1 o

Table 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets

For Years 20212022 to 20232024

Outlets Outlets
Outlets Reacquired Outlets Outlets Sold to | Outlets at End of
State Year at Start .
Opened from Closed Franchisees the Year
of Year .
Franchisees
South 20212022 76 0 1 21 0 6
Carolina 20232022 6 0 10 12 0 64
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State Year

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Outlets
Reacquired
from
Franchisees

Outlets
Closed

Outlets Sold to

Franchisees the Year

20232024

64

41

20212022

76

6

Totals 20232022

6

20232024

o|lo|lo| o

64

[} el el N
INIINON
= | IR

Table 5

Projected New Franchised Outlets
As of December 31, 20232024

State

Franchise Agreements
Signed But
QOutlet Not Opened

Outlet in the
Next Fiscal Year

Projected New Franchised

Projected New Company
Owned Outlets in the
Next Fiscal Year

Alabama

0

0

Alaska

(=]

Arizona

Arkansas

A ﬂ.ZEH 3

| of =

California

&

Colorado

Delaware

District of Columbia

Florida

Georgia

Hawaii

Idaho

Illinois

Indiana

lTowa

Kansas

Kentucky

Louisiana

Maine

Maryland

Massachusetts

Michigan

Minnesota

Mississippi

Missouri

Montana

OOOO\OOOOOO'—‘OOWOOO\]OHM|

ol oo o oo oo|o|c|w| oo o|w| x| o
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Franchise Agreements | Projected New Franchised | Projected New Company
State Signed But Outlet in the Owned Outlets in the
QOutlet Not Opened Next Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
Nebraska 0 0 0
Nevada 0 0 0
New Hampshire 0 0 0
New Jersey 1 0 0
New Mexico 0 0 0
New York 1 0 0
North Carolina 1 01 0
North Dakota 0 0 0
Ohio 3 0 0
Oklahoma 0 0 0
Oregon 1 0 0
Pennsylvania 0 0 0
Rhode Island 0 0 0
South Carolina 0 0 0
South Dakota 0 0 0
Tennessee 21 10 0
Texas +716 31 0
Vermont 0 0 0
Virginia 1 0 0
Washington 42 10 0
Wisconsin 0 0 0
Total 66 11 0

Attached at Exhibit D is a list of 9ROUND Centers open as of December 31, 20232024 and a list of
franchisees who are in the process of opening Centers. Exhibit D also includes a list of franchisees who
have left the system within the last fiscal year or who have not communicated with us within ten (10) weeks
of this disclosure document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other
buyers when you leave the franchise system.

No franchisee has signed, within the last three (3) years, a confidentiality clause with us that would restrict
the franchisee’s ability to openly communicate with you.

There is a 9ROUND Franchisee Advisory Council (FAC) which is currently comprised of ten<1+06nine (9)
members representing various geographic areas: eight (8) U.S. 9ROUND franchisees, ene{1H-Canadian
9ROUNDFEranchisees-and one (1) 9ROUND franchisor representative. Currently, six{(6five (5) franchisee
members are nominated and elected each year following 9ROUND sour annual World Convention or by
any other process as may be announced by us, including by email. One (1) franchisee member shall be the
Executive Choice Nominee and-selected by our Chief Executive Officer. Any person who owns an interest
in a 9ROUND franchise is eligible for nomination, selection, and membership, provided that they meet
certain criteria found in the FAC By-laws. Qualified persons may be nominated by franchisees or by others,
including 9ROUND management. Each member will be selected for a one (1) year term. To ensure
continuity from year to year, two (2) franchisee members from the prior year’s FAC will be selected by
9ROUND as members for the following year’s FAC.
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ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit B are our audited balance sheets as of December 31,
20232024, December 31, 20232622, and December 31, 20212022, and the related consolidated statements

of operations and comprehensive income, and changes in member equity and cash flows for the years then
ended.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.

9ROUND® 67

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT — 26242025 v.1.90



ITEM 22

CONTRACTS
This disclosure document includes a sample of the following contracts:
Exhibit C - Franchise Agreement, Sample Renewal Addendum, and State Specific Addenda
Exhibit F - Sample Membership Agreement
Exhibit G - Sample Form of General Release Agreement

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Attached to this disclosure document in Exhibit H are two detachable acknowledgments of receipt.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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STATE APPENDIX TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

The California Corporations Code, Section 31125, requires us to give you a disclosure document, in a form
containing the information that the commissioner may by rule or order require, before a solicitation of a
proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

Item 3 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

Neither the franchisor nor any person identified in Item 2 of the disclosure document is subject to
any current effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange as
defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, U.S.C.A., 78a et. seq., suspending or expelling
such persons from membership in such association or exchange.

Item 6 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

12% per annum or
the highest lawful
Interest interest rate in Upon demand
California, currently
10% per annum

Payable only if you fail to pay
amounts owed to us when due.

Item 17 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the
franchisee concerning transfer, termination or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise
Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

You must sign a release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations Code voids
a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code 31000
through 31516). Business and Professions Code 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the
Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043).

The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination
of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. § 101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section
1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of South Carolina. This provision may not
be enforceable under California law.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability
of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement
restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

While the earnings claims figures do reflect historical gross sales ranges, they do not reflect all
operating expenses or other costs and expenses that must be deducted from gross sales to obtain net
9ROUND® 1
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income or profit. You should conduct an independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will
incur in operating your franchise business. Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the offering
circular, may be one source of this information.

Our website can be found at www.9round.com. OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED
OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND
INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE
MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION
AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF HAWAH

FORTHESTATE-OFILLINOIS

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Franchise Agreement that South Carolina law shall govern, Illinois
law shall apply to and govern any claim between the parties under the Franchise Agreement that alleges
violation of the Act.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise
agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is void. However,
a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Y our rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.
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Item 1 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following paragraphs:

The Illinois Physical Fitness Facility Medical Emergency Preparedness Act requires that a physical
fitness facility (which excludes any facility serving less than 100 individuals or that does not
employ any persons to provide instruction, training, or assistance for persons using the facility)
have at least one automated external defibrillator (AED) and ensure that there is a trained AED user
on staff and present during all staffed hours. Other provisions apply. See 210 ILCS 74 et seq.

The Illinois Dance Studio Act (which applies to any person or business entity which contract with
members of the general public to provide dance studio services, including instruction, training or
assistance in dancing, the use of studio facilities, membership in any group formed by a dance
studio, and participation in dance competitions or showcases) requires that every contract for dance
studio services be in writing and its contents must conform to the Act’s requirements. The Act
provides for contract execution, cancellation and refund. Other provisions apply. See 815 ILCS
610 et seq.

FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Item 17 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

(a) Any release or waiver provision contained in the Franchise Agreement or any release
required as a condition of the sale, renewal, and/or assignment/transfer of the franchise
shall not apply to any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law (the “Maryland Franchise Law”).

(b) Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three years
after the grant of the franchise;

(c) Any provision in the Franchise Agreement requiring litigation in a forum outside the State
of Maryland will not limit any rights you may have under the Maryland Franchise Law to
bring suit in the State of Maryland.

FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA
Item 13 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:
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The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names,
logotypes or other commercial symbols (“Marks”) or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs
or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

As required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.12(g), we will reimburse you
for any costs incurred that you incur in the defense of your right to use the Marks, so long as you
were using the Marks in the manner that we authorized, and so long as we are timely notified of
the claim and given the right to manage the defense of the claim including the right to compromise,
settle or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether to appeal a final determination of
the claim.

Item 17 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec.
80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that (1) a franchisee be
given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the Agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably
withheld.

To the extent that any condition, stipulation, or provision contained in the Franchise Agreement
(including any choice of law provision) purports to require any person who, at the time of acquiring
a franchise is a resident of Minnesota, or, in the case of a partnership or corporation, organized or
incorporated under the laws of Minnesota, or purporting to bind a person acquiring any franchise
to be operated in Minnesota, to waive compliance with the Minnesota Franchises Law, such
condition, stipulation, or provision may be void and unenforceable under the non-waiver provision
of the Minnesota Franchises Law.

FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK
1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND
THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR
MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT
USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE
SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added to the end of Item 3:
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Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item
2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony; a violation of a franchise, antitrust or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or
comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which
are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial
condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or,
within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been
convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a
civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud or securities law; fraud; embezzlement;
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating
to the franchise, or under a Federal, State or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade
regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding
brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order or any national
securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or
exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any
other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department,
including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements
for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5) be
satisfied.

4. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of
forum,” and Item 17 (w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York.

FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

1. The Securities Commissioner for the State of North Dakota has held that the provisions stated
below in (a) through (h) are unfair, unjust, or inequitable to North Dakota Franchisees (Section 51-19-09,
N.D.C.C.) and may be unenforceable under North Dakota Law:

9ROUND®
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(a) A provision requiring a North Dakota franchisee to sign a general release upon renewal of
the Franchise Agreement;

(b) A provision requiring a North Dakota franchisee to consent to termination penalties or
liquidated damages;

(c) A provision requiring a North Dakota franchisee to consent to the jurisdiction of courts
outside the state of North Dakota;

(d) A provision requiring a choice of law contrary to the North Dakota Franchise Investment
Law;

(e) A provision restricting the time in which a North Dakota franchisee may make a claim to

less than the applicable North Dakota statute of limitations;
® A provision calling for the waiver by a North Dakota franchisee of the right to trial by jury;

(2) A provision requiring a North Dakota franchisee to consent to a waiver of exemplary and
punitive damages; and

(h) A provision requiring the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the
franchisor in enforcing the Franchise Agreement.

2. North Dakota Century Code Section 9-08-06 subjects covenants not to compete to the provisions
of that statute. The covenants not to compete contained within the Franchise Agreement are subject to
Section 9-08-06 and may be unenforceable under North Dakota law.

3. The site of any mediation of the parties’ disputes shall be at a site mutually agreeable to all parties.
If all parties cannot agree upon a location, mediation shall be Fargo, North Dakota.

FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Act (“Act”) provides that “A provision in a Franchise
Agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring application of the laws
of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.”

FOR THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Item 1 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

Health spas in Virginia are regulated by the Department of Agriculture, Office of Consumer Affairs
who can be reached at (804)786-1343.

Item 6 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

Any securities offered or sold by the Investor Franchisee as part of the 9Round Franchising, LLC
franchise must either be registered or exempt from registration under Section 13.1-514 of the
Virginia Securities Act.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, Item
17.h. of the Franchise Disclosure Document for 9Round Franchising, LLC, for use in the Commonwealth
of Virginia is supplemented by the following:

“Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the
franchise agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the
Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.”
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FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

Item 17 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

For franchisees subject to the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Ch. 135, Stats., provisions in the Fair
Dealership Law supersede any inconsistent provisions of the Franchise Agreement or a related contract.
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EXHIBIT A
LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS
LIST OF AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

®
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LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS

California

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, California 90013

(866) 275-2677

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

Ilinois

Office of Attorney General
500 S. Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

Indiana

Franchise Section, Securities Division
302 W. Washington St., Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

(317) 232-6681

Maryland

Office of Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, Maryland 21202
(410) 576-7042

Michigan

Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Attn: Franchise Section

525 W. Ottawa Street

G. Mennen Williams Bldg., 1% Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48913
(517)373-7117

Minnesota

Department of Commerce

85 7™ Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198
(651) 539-1600
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New York

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
New York, New York 10005
(212) 416-8236

North Dakota

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Blvd. Avenue

State Capitol, Fifth Floor Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

Oregon

Division of Consumer and Business Services

350 Winter St. N.E. Labor & Industries Bldg., Rm 21
Salem, Oregon 97310

(503) 378-4387

Rhode Island

Department of Business Regulation
Securities Division

1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 68-2
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9527

South Dakota

Department of Labor and Regulation
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-3563

Virginia

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 East Main Street, 9™ Floor

Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

Washington

Department of Financial Institutions, Securities Div.
150 Israel Road, S.W.

Tumwater, Washington 98501

(360) 902-8760

Wisconsin

Division of Securities

Department of Financial Institutions
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, WI 53705

(608) 266-8559
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LIST OF AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

California

Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Ilinois

[llinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706

Indiana

Indiana Secretary of State

302 W. Washington St., Room E-018
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Maryland

Maryland Securities Commissioner
Office of the Attorney General

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020

Michigan

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Franchise Section

525 W. Ottawa Street

G. Mennen Williams Bldg., 1% Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48913

Minnesota

Commissioner of Commerce

85 7™ Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198

New York

New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6™ Floor
Albany, New York 12231

North Dakota

Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue, 5" Floor
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
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Oregon

Director

Department of Consumer and Business Services
Division of Finance and Corporate Securities
Labor and Industries Building

Salem, Oregon 97310

Rhode Island

Director of Department of Business Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 68-2

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

South Dakota

Director

Department of Labor and Regulation
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Virginia

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1% Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Washington

Director

Department of Financial Institutions
150 Israel Road, S.W.

Tumwater, Washington 98501

Wisconsin

Commissioner of Securities

4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705
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EXHIBIT B
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

®
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9Round Franchising, LLC

Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 20232024 and 20222023
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members-

9Round Franchising,

LLC

_Simpsonville, South Carolina

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 9Round Franchising, LLC and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 20232024 and 20222023,
the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income; (loss), changes in members’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements (collectively, the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 20232024 and 20222023, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

elliottdavis.com

Augusta | Bengaluru | Charleston | Charlotte | Chattanooga | Columbia | Greenville | Nashville | Raleigh | elliottdavis.com




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

f%@m Le

Greenville, South Carolina
April 26,202414, 2025
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Asof December 31,2023
31,2023

Assets9Round Franchising, LLC
Current-assetsConsolidated Balance Sheets

CashAs of December 31, 2024 and cash-equivalents2023
Frade-accountsreceivablesnet

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable, net
Inventory, net

Prepaid expenses
Current portion of deferred franchise costs

Due from related parties
Income taxes receivable
Current portion of notes receivables
Other current assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Intangibles, net
Deferred franchise costs, net of current portion

Goodwill, net

Deferred tax asset
Notes receivable, less current portion

Other assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Members' Equity

| Deleted Cells
‘ ‘ Deleted Cells

995,005

337248

200

Lol

20:843
—— 7554
——8458,109

2455964

Q02

28234

851814

Lk

7935
ﬂ
——4270754
—$—12.728.863

2024 2023

$ 253926l $ 5,164,601
1,081,123 995,005
1,353,660 1,337,218
269,787 290,132
217,810 632,756
42,843 20,843
2,089 B
90,595 17,554
69,094 -
5,666,262 8,458,109
2,138,082 2,455,964
644,481 902,475
18,820 28,234
618,989 851,814
697,462 -

. 19.44
E 7,935
2,000 4,884
4119834 4270754
$ 9.786,096 $ 12,728,863




c liabiliti

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 273,188 $ 369,335
Accrued expenses 214,100 376,996
Income taxes payable 211,945 4,749
Current portion of deferred franchise revenue 744,483 1,108,611
Current portion of finance lease liabilities 28,043 24,939
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 224,217 248,430
Other current liabilities 214,390 392,828

Total current liabilities 1,910,366 2,525,888

Long-term liabilities

Deferred franchise revenue, net of current portion 2,749,381 3,658,898
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 440,733 674,918
Finance lease liabilities, net of current portion 1,940,341 1,968,384
Total long-term liabilities 5,130455 6,302,200
Total liabilities 7,040,821 8,828,088
SEssmne—paakle G——gnzot $— 364109
Acerued-expenses 376,996 505473
Ireome-taxes-payable 4749 5637
Current portion-of deferred-franchise revenue ++08:6H 270772
Other-eurrentliabiliiesMembers' equity ———392.828 2,745,275 . —_——‘ Inserted Cells
0,775
Total eurrentliabilities and members' equity —2.525888 % 9.786,0964 — §;{ Inserted Cells
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Deferredfranchiserevenuernetofeurrentpertiond Round Franchising, LLC

Operatinglease liabilities, net-of eurrent-portionConsolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive

Income (Loss)
Fi iabilities. ¢ .
T ORg-&

Members' .
FotaHiabilitiesand-members-equityFor the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

— 1968384
——6:302.200
— 8828088

——3:900.775
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‘ ‘ Deleted Cells
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‘ \ Deleted Cells







2024 2023
Revenues
Franchise fee revenue $ 1,565,020 $ 2,373,700
Master and area license fee revenue 310,011 379,946
Royalty revenue 2,474,908 2,495,083
Fee revenue 2,954,659 3,483,147
Product revenue 2,351,032 2,574,905
Rebate revenue 923,469 1,134,432
Other revenue 990,516 1,051,810
Total revenues 11,569,615 13,493,023
Operating expenses
Advertising and marketing 1,148,754 1,533,476
Depreciation and amortization 531,914 411,585
Commissions 610,210 708,159
Professional fees 1,033,432 712,269
Personnel costs 2,867,287 3,706,458
Other operating expenses 4,081,805 3,323,276
Total operating expenses 10,273,402 10,395,223
(Loss) income from operations ale6ll) 1,179,395
Other income (expense)
Interest expense 78,311 (79.217)
Interest income 60,135 106,739
Unrealized foreign currency gain (loss) (31.890) 20,733
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (149,320) (4,001)
Other income, net 74,624 28,321
Total other income (expense), net (124,762) 72,575
(Loss) income before income taxes (436,373) 1,251,970
Cost9Round-Franchising, LLC
Consolidated-Statements of Operations-and-Comprehensive-product revenue 1,607,824 1,918,405
Income tax expense 231,393 42,055
Ferthesreopeended Decepalop 2L D000 anll D000 (667766} 209915
Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Changes in cumulative translation adjustments 34,405 (38.977)
Total comprehensive (loss) income $ (633361) $ 1,170,938




— | Deleted Cells s
1 Deleted Cells
Franchise-feerevenue $—2373;700 | $—2353;912
Meseopandarenliconoefoerainnne 2oL 40700
Royalty-revenue 2,495,083 2,945,041
Feerevenue 5273 3;287.833
Productrevenue 2,574,905 4;8H196
Rebaterevenue 4902306 +:884,968
Totalrevenues 13,493,023 16:798,079
Cestefrpedustpaanue —oleans ——2.988.820
Operating expenses
Professional-fees 712,269 647387
Personnelcosts 3;706:458 4;240,905
Other-operating-expenses —3323276 ——3:832.068
Fotal-operating-expenses ——H0:395223 —RA77136
e e e = e — e —+632423
Cibepinesmelesenss)
Lz m s Lo e
Gai forei (p p ionP ) 576,070
Income before incometaxes e 3;258740
Income-tax-expense —nnrs ——36915
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in eumulative-translation-adjustmentsMembers' Equity — [ Deleted Cells .
Fotal-comprehensive-incomeFor the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 o | Deleted Cells
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Accumulated Total Members'
Loss Earnings Equity
Balance, January I, 2023 $ (I5.154) % 3.762,176 $ 3,747,022

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



Distributions to _members

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Balance, December 31, 2023

Distributions to members

Net loss
Other comprehensive income
Balance, December 31, 2024

- (1,017,185) (1,017,185)
- 1,209,915 1,209.915

(38.977) - (38.977)
(54,131) 3,954,906 3,900,775

- (522,139) (522,139)

- (667.766) (667,766)
34,405 - 34,405
(19.726) 2,765,001 $ 2,745,275




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
(used for) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Write-off of uncollectible notes and long-term receivables

Provision for credit losses

Deferred taxes

Interest expense on finance lease liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade accounts receivable
Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses
Deferred franchise costs

Due from related parties
Operating lease ROU assets and lease liabilities, net

Other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Deferred franchise revenue
Due to related parties
Other current liabilities
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of business
Issuance of notes receivable

Collections on notes receivable
Net cash used for investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on finance leases

Distributions to members
Net cash used for financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Supplemental disclosure 3

Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

2024 2023
$  (667.766) $ 1209915
531,914 411,587
149,320 4,101
6.235 -
183,169 81,66
18,747 37513
78311 79217
(263,124) 863,767
(16,442) 460,437
10,188 117,804
486,379 785,660
(22,000) ;
(404) 2,199
(69.094) .
2,886 ;
(98.114) 4,844
(169,201) (139,675)
204,629 558
(1,213,545) (2.235,628)
- 54,254
(178,438) 221,053
(1,026,350) 1,959,269
(290,532) (415,985)
(750,000) B
- (5.320)
38,659 16,373
(1,001,873) (404,932)
(103,250) (101,210)
(522,139) (1,017.185)
(625,389) (1,118,395)
(2,653,612) 435,942
28272 69,163
5,164,601 4,659,496
$ 253926l $ 5,164,601
$ 78311 § 79.217
3 6273 $ 8.121
$ 110000 $ )

Sale of master franchise agreement financed by seller with note receivable

See Notes to C lidated Financial Stat ts




MG LOLL




744

74+

3 747 00D
a9z

(15 154\
=22}

o




221,053

(19 2302\
s 1

——H959269

——H218455—




. __________________________________________________________________________________________|]
9Round Franchising, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities

Description of business:

9Round Franchising, LLC and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”’) were formed for the purpose of
granting franchises for the establishment and operation of a center (‘“Center”) offering a service-oriented
boxing and kickboxing fitness program combining strength, cardiovascular exercises and circuit training for
the entire body to achieve results. A 9Round Center offers boxing and kickboxing fitness programs that
provide professional assistance to clients for a total body workout using our proprietary system of challenging
workout stations. A 9Round Center franchise will offer clients a variety of comprehensive services that include,
but are not limited to, teaching various boxing and kickboxing disciplines in addition to selling retail and fitness
products utilizing the Company’s proprietary business format and system.

On December 15, 2008, 9Round Franchising, LLC was formed under the laws of the State of South Carolina.

During 2008, the Company began offering franchises pursuant to federal and state laws that regulate the sale
of franchises including the Federal Trade Commission’s Franchise Rule. The Company’s accounting for
franchising operations is in accordance with franchisor accounting, generally accepted in the United States
of America.

The franchise agreements typically require the franchisee to pay an initial, nonrefundable fee, as well as
continuing royalties to the Company generally based upon a fixed fee stated in the contract. In most cases,
under these arrangements, franchisees are granted the right to use and operate the location for a period of
ten years with an additional ten-year renewal option contingent on payment of a renewal fee.

On November 27, 2013, the Company incorporated 9Round Franchising of Canada, Inc. under the British
Columbia Corporations Act. On November 8, 2018, the Company incorporated 9RFranchising Canada, ULC
under the British Columbia Corporations Act. On January |, 2019, 9Round Franchising of Canada, Inc. was
amalgamated as one company under the name 9RFranchising Canada, ULC. On July 31, 2018, 9Round Attic
Holdings, LLC was formed under the laws of the State of South Carolina and is the U.S. parent of 9RFranchising
Canada, ULC. 9Round Attic Holdings, LLC and 9RFranchising Canada, ULC are wholly owned subsidiaries of
9Round Franchising, LLC.

On December 16, 2014, the Company formed 9Round International, LLC under the laws of the State of South
Carolina. 9Round International, LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of 9Round Franchising, LLC.

On December 22, 2023, the Company formed 9Round Holding Company, LLC under the laws of the State of
South Carolina. 9Round Holding Company, LLC is a wholly owned;—ren-operating; subsidiary of 9Round
Franchising, LLC.

Effective February 28, 2024, the Company acquired the assets of ILKB Too LLC (“ILKB”) through its subsidiary
9Round Holding Company, LLC. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Company took over the franchising
operations for ILKB, which offers franchises under the brand name | Love Kickboxing.

On August |, 2024, the Company sold franchising rights for Canada to a master franchisee for total
consideration of $260,000. Of the total consideration, $150,000 was paid on or before the sale date. The
remaining $110,000 was financed by the Company with a note receivable due by December 30, 2025. In
connection with the sale, all existing franchise agreements held by 9Round Franchising Canada, ULC were
transferred to the master franchisee.
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Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and include the accounts of 9Round Franchising, LLC and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, 9RFranchising Canada, ULC, 9Round International, LLC, and 9Round Holding
Company, LLC. All significant intra-entity balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The Company does not apply the VIE consolidation model to its qualifying common control arrangements.
Additionally, activity related to these arrangements is described in Note 78.
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Cash and cash equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Company places its cash with high quality financial institutions. At times,
such investments may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance limits. The
Company has not experienced losses in such investments and does not believe it is exposed to any significant
risk on its cash and cash equivalents.

Trade accounts receivable, net:

Trade accounts receivable consist primarily of franchise fees, royalties, and other fees due from franchisees.
Receivables are recorded at their |nv0|ced amounts, net of a reserve for potentlal credit losses. No interest is
charged on outstandlng receivables.

Effective January |, 2023, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13 as amended.
An allowance for credit losses is maintainmaintained based on historical experience adjusted for current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts taking into account geographical and industry-specific
economic factors The Company also considers any speqf“c customer collectlon issues. Smeeﬂ%e@emp&ny{

Receivables balances are charged against the allowance for credlt losses after all means of collectlon have
been exhausted and the potential for collections is considered remote. Provisions for credit losses on trade
receivables are recorded in other operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations and comprehensive income: (loss).

Estimating credit losses based on risk characteristics requires significant judgement by the Company.
Significant judgments include but are not limited to assessing current economic conditions and the extent to
which they would be relevant to the existing characteristics of the Company’s financial assets, the estimated
life of financial assets and the level of reliance on historical experience in light of economic conditions. The
Company reviews and updates, when necessary, its historical risk characteristics that are meaningful to
estimating credit losses, any new risk characteristics that arise in the natural course of business and the
estimated life of its financial assets.



Trade accounts receivable, net, continued:

The following shows activity in the allowance for credit losses for the yearyears ended December 31, 2024
and 2023:

2024 2023
Eelosoercmnnmn 000
Beginning balance $ 157,183 $ 83,610
Provision for credit losses 183,169 81,663
Credits charged-off against allowance (234,548) (8.090)
Balanee-at December3+H2023Ending balance $ 105,804 $ 157,183

Inserted Cells
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Notes receivable:

Notes receivable consist of amounts due from new franchisees and master franchisees when a portion of the
franchise sale or master franchise agreement has been financed by the Company;—less—. Balances are
presented net of an allowance for uncellectible—notes—for—estimatedcredit losses resulting from
franchisees’borrower’s failure to make note payments in accordance with the terms of their respective loan
agreements. Prier—teo-Janua 20 management determined the allowance for uncollectible notes by identifying

—As of December 31, 20232024 and 2622202

no allowance for credit losses on uncollectible notes was required.

3, management has determined that

Certain notes receivable from franchisees do not have a stated interest rate, the Company determines an
effective interest rate in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (‘“ASC”) 835-30-35 Interest —
Imputation of Interest. The Company recognizes interest income from these notes in the period earned. The
Company had notes receivable balances totaling approximately $91,000 and $25,000 and-$37,000-at
December 31, 20232024 and 2022;+espectfully2023, respectively.

Amounts charged to the allowance for credit losses are accounted for as a reduction in franchise fee revenue.
Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the allowance for credit losses.

Inventory:

Inventory consisting of gym supplies, personal equipment, and apparel is stated at lower of cost or net
realizable value. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventory less all estimated
costs to sell. The cost of inventory is based on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, and includes expenditures
incurred in acquiring the inventory and other costs incurred in bringing it to its existing location and condition.
A provision or write off is made for any obsolete or damaged inventory identified by management. Damaged
inventory is written down as identified. Obsolescence is assessed based on factors such as consumable
inventory and comparison of the level of inventory holding to the projected likely future sales using factors
existing at the reporting date. The reserve for slow-moving or obsolete inventory was approximately $34.000
and $29,000 and-$48;000-as of December 31, 20232024 and 20222023, respectively.

Deferred franchise costs:

Deferred franchise costs consist of commissions and other direct costs relating to initial franchise fees,
development agreements and license fees for which revenue has not been recognized. These costs are
deferred until the related revenue is recognized.



Property and equipment:

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the asset, and leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives or the period of the respective leases. No depreciation
is taken on construction in progress. The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 30.25 years
Leasehold improvements 3023 - 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Vehicles, software and equipment 3-5 years

Upon disposition, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the books and the
resulting gain or loss is included in other expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income: (loss). Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend
the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred.

Business combinations:

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, whereby the purchase
price of the acquisition is allocated to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed using the fair values
determined by management as of the acquisition date. This ordinarily results in balances being recognized at
higher values by the acquirer than the amount recognized by the acquiree. The results of operations of all
business acquisitions are included in the accompanying financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Gooduwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of consideration transferred over the net of the
acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The creation of goodwill in the
Company’s transactions was the result of anticipated future growth. While the Company uses its best
estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, the Company’s estimates are inherently uncertain and
subject to refinement. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the
acquisition date, to the extent the Company identifies adjustments to the purchase price or the purchase price
allocation, the Company records adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with the
corresponding offset to goodwill.

Upon the conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the values of assets acquired or
liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to the consolidated
statement of operations. All acquisition-related expenses incurred in connection with a business combination
are expensed as incurred and are reflected as transaction expenses in the accompanying statements of
operations. Transaction expenses for 2024 totaled approximately $50,000 and are included in professional
fees in the consolidated statement of operations.
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Goodwill:

Goodwill arising from business combinations represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value
of the net assets acquired and is amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years. The carrying
value of goodwill is reviewed when circumstances and events indicate that the asset might be impaired and
the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the Company is less than the carrying value of
these assets. If the estimated fair value is less than book value, then impairment is deemed to have occurred.
Management has determined there are no impairment issues with goodwill as of December 31, 2024.

At _December 31, 2024, goodwill totaled approximately $761,000, less accumulated amortization of
approximately $64,000. Amortization of goodwill amounted to approximately $64,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2024. Estimated amortization of goodwill is expected to be $76,000 in 2025 through 2029, and
$317,000 thereafter.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets primarily-consist of certain legal and related costs incurred in connection with trademark
applications-a acqui anchi ig i i a—franchi
Company capitalizes such costs to the extent that an economic benefit is anticipated from the resulting
trademark and-developmentrights-or an alternative future use is available to the Company. Amortization
of trademark costs-and-develepmentrights is provided for by the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Company’s assessment of future economic benefit of its intangible assets
involves management judgment, and a different conclusion could result in an impairment charge up to the
carrying value of these assets.

a © © guire—the fse—daevetopmen gn or—\W onsti—irem achisee. The

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, intangible assets totaled approximately $94,000, less accumulated
amortization of approximately $75,000 and $66,000, respectively. Amortization of intangible assets amounted
to approximately $9,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. Estimated amortization of
intangible assets is expected to be approximately $9,400 in 2025 and 2026.

Impairment of long-lived assets:

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to undiscounted future net cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of
the assets. Management believes there is no impairment with long-lived assets as of December 31, 20232024
and 20222023.



Revenue recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which provides a five-step model for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers.

The Company’s revenue primarily consists of franchise revenue, master and area license fee revenue, product
revenue, rebate revenue, and Company-owned gym revenue. The Company’s products and services are sold
primarily to customers in the United States, Canada and certain international markets. OurThe Company’s
results of operations are substantially affected by economic conditions, which can vary significantly by
market and can be impacted by consumer disposable income levels and spending habits.
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Franchise revenue: Franchise revenue consists primarily of initial and renewal franchise fees, royalties,
advertising revenue, and other fees.

Our franchise agreements include (a) the right to use our symbolic intellectual property over the term of each
franchise agreement, (b) pre-opening services, such as training, and (c) ongoing services, such as
management of the advertising contributions, development of training materials and gym monitoring. These
promises are highly dependent upon and interrelated with the franchise right granted in the franchise
agreement, so they are not considered to be individually distinct and therefore are accounted for as a single
performance obligation. Revenue from franchise agreements, which consists of royalties, advertising, and
other frees, is recognized evenly over the term of the agreement with the exception of sales-based fees.

Sales-based royalty and sales-based advertising revenues are recognized in the period in which the sales
occur. Sales-based royalties and sales-based advertising are variable consideration related to the Company’s
performance obligation to the franchisees to maintain the intellectual property being licensed.

Franchise fee revenue consists of initial and transfer franchise fees. Franchise fees are billed and received
upon the signing of the franchise agreement. Recognition of these fees occur over time based on the term of
the underlying franchise agreement. In the event a franchise agreement is terminated, any remaining deferred
fees are recognized in the period of termination.

Master and area license revenue: The Company sells master and area licenses that grant the sole rights to
develop 9Round Centers and grant individual franchises within a specific geographical area. These
agreements transfer franchise rights within a geographical area permitting the opening of a number of
franchised outlets. Decisions regarding the number of outlets and their locations are primarily made by the
master franchisee with approval of the Company. The Company believes the license and development rights
are distinct from the franchise agreements.

Similar to the franchise agreements, the right to use our symbolic intellectual property over the term of the
license agreement is accounted for as a single performance obligation recognized evenly over the term of the
license agreement. In the event a license agreement is terminated, any remaining deferred fees are recognized
in the period of termination.
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Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, Continued

Revenue recognition, continued:

Product revenue: Revenue from the sale of products is recognized upon transfer of control to the customer,
which is typically upon shipment. The Company has elected to treat shipping and handling activities related
to contracts with customers as costs to fulfill the promise to transfer the associated equipment and not as a
separate performance obligation. The Company collects and remits sales taxes on transactions with
customers and reports such amounts under the net method in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income:_(loss). Accordingly, these taxes are not included in gross revenue.

Rebate revenue: Rebates are received based on purchases of goods or services by a franchisee to approved
vendors required in the franchise agreements. Revenue is recognized at a point in time each month.




December 31, 2023 and 2022
5 d-2022
PbletetCuparrae et Cianifiecns LeconntinePalicios oped Natiritios

Company-owned gym revenue: Gym revenue consists of membership fees and merchandise sales.
Membership revenue is a stand-ready performance obligation with a series of distinct time increments and
therefore is a single performance obligation. Revenue from gym memberships is recognized evenly over the
term of the membership agreement. The Company records revenue from sales of merchandise upon delivery
of the geedgoods to the customer, which is when our performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from products and merchandise sales and rebates is recognized at a point in time, whereas franchise
fee, master and area license fee, royalty, and fee revenue are recognized over time. Total revenue recognized
at a point in time and over time was approximately as follows for the years ended December 31:

2024 2023
Revenue recognized at a point in time $ 4265000 $ 4.761,000
Revenue recognized over time 7,305,000 8,732,000

$ 11,570,000 $ 13,493,000

With the exception of initial, renewal, and master area and license fees, all other revenue is either collected on
the date of transaction or within one month. The Company believes its franchising, master and area licensing
agreements do not contain a significant financing component because (a) the timing of the upfront payment
does not arise for the reason of provision of financing to the Company and (b) the sales-based royalty is
variable and based on factors outside the Company or the franchisee’s control.

Leases:
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Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, Continued

Revenue recognition, continued:

The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the date on which the
terms of the contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable rights and obligations. A contract
is or contains a lease when (i) explicitly or implicitly identified assets have been deployed in the contract and-
(ii) the Company obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of that underlying asset and
directs how and for what purpose the asset is used during the term of the contract. The Company also
considers whether its service arrangements include the right to control the use of an asset.

The Company made an accounting policy election available under_Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
Topic 842 not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less. For all
other leases, ROU assets and lease liabilities are measured based on the present value of future lease
payments over the lease term at the commencement date of the lease-{erjanuary—}-2022 for-existing-leases
upon—the-adeption—of Topic-842).. The ROU assets also include any initial direct costs incurred and lease

payments made at or before the commencement date and are reduced by any lease incentives.

Future lease payments may include fixed rent escalation clauses or payments that depend on an index (such
as the consumer price index), which is initially measured using the index or rate at lease commencement.
Subsequent changes of an index and other periodic market-rate adjustments to base rent are recorded in
variable lease expense in the period incurred. Residual value guarantees or payments for terminating the lease
are included in the lease payments only when it is probable they will be incurred.




Income taxes:

The Company is taxed as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Consequently, federal income taxes
are not provided for or payable by the Company. The Company is subject to various state level taxes. The
Company has elected to file composite filings for state income taxes in those states in which the Company

meets the requirements for composite filing.



The Company is considered a non-resident in foreign jurisdictions and is subject to corporate withholding
taxes for payments of royalties and similar payments made by its foreign franchisees. The Company
recognizes these withholding taxes in the provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income: (loss). The Company’s net income or loss is allocated to the members
who are taxed individually on their share of each Company’s earnings.

The Company recognizes income tax related interest and penalties in interest expense and other operating
expenses, respectively, in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income:_(loss).

9Round International, LLC, 9Round Attic Holdings, LLC, and 9Round Holding Company, LLC are single member
LLCs and, as such, are treated as divisions of 9Round Franchising, LLC for federal income tax purposes.
Because of their status, these entities are disregarded as separate entities for income tax purposes, therefore
these entities do not file income tax returns separate and apart from their parent, 9Round Franchising, LLC.

9RFranchising Canada, ULC is taxed as a corporation in Canada and accounts for income taxes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards, which requires the use of the liability method of accounting for
income taxes. Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial
statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes are provided for the
temporary differences in basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and their reported amounts. The
deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax consequences of those differences, which will either
be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the enacted rates that are expected to be in effect when these differences
are expected to reverse. Deferred tax expense or benefit is the result of the changes in the deferred tax assets
and liabilities. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more-likely-
than-not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company recognizes
income tax related interest and penalties in interest expense and other operating expenses, respectively, in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income: (loss).

Advertising:

All costs associated with advertising and marketing are expensed in the period incurred. Advertising and
marketing costs totaled approximately $1,149.000 and $1.,533,000 and-$2:102;000—for the years ended
December 31, 20232024 and 20222023, respectively.

Personnel costs:
Personnel costs include all salaries, wages, and contract labor paid to employees and contract laborers.

Personnel costs also include charges for employee benefits, various payroll taxes and other payroll related
fees.
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Shipping and handling costs:

Amounts billed to a customer in a sales transaction related to shipping and handling are included in revenue
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income: (loss). Costs
incurred for shipping and handling are included in cost of product revenue in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income:_(loss).

Presentation of sales taxes:

The states and municipalities in which the Company operates impose sales tax on all of the Company's
nonexempt revenue. The Company collects sales tax from its franchisees and remits the entire amount to the
appropriate taxing authority. The Company's policy is to exclude the tax collected and remitted from revenue
and cost of product revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income:_(loss). The Company accrues sales tax liabilities as it records sales, maintaining the amount owed to
the taxing authorities as a current liability.

Other comprehensive income: (loss):

Other comprehensive income (loss) consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Foreign currency:

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates
in effect at the balance sheet date. Results of operations and cash flows are translated using the average
exchange rates throughout the period. The effect of exchange rate fluctuations on translation of assets and
liabilities is included as a component of members’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive loss. Gains
and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in other income and expense.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Fair value of assets and liabilities:

The carrying values of all of the Company's financial instruments approximate their fair values. The Company
applies the guidance related to fair value for certain non-financial assets and liabilities. The non-financial
assets and liabilities include items such as long-lived assets and intangibles.



Mega erment-o ad o on ancial-lnstruments—as-amended .

financial-assets-measured-at-amortized-cost-Financial-assets-measured-at-amortized-cost will-be presented-at the-net

receivablefrom-franchisees;and-contract-assets—resultingfrom-revenue-transactions(deferredfranchise—costs)-

Reclassifications:

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year consolidated financial statements to conform to
current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported net income or
members’ equity.
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Subsequent events:

The Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through April 26;
202414, 2025, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance. See Note || for a
description of events occurring after December 31, 2024.

Note 2. Acquisitions

Effective February 28, 2024, the Company acquired the assets of ILKB Too LLC. The acquisition took
place pursuant to an asset purchase agreement for a purchase price of approximately $768,000. The
Company completed the acquisition to reinforce its competitive position in the kickboxing fitness market
and generate synergies among brands to provide future revenue growth. The Company completed an
assessment of the allocation of the purchase price to the acquired assets and assumed liabilities in
accordance with GAAP. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired has
been recognized as goodwill.

Total consideration:

Cash $ 750,000
Contingent consideration 18,182
Total purchase price $ 768,182
Allocation:
Accounts receivable $ 7,314
Goodwill 760,868
Total allocation $ 768,182

As part of the purchase price, the Company agreed to pay the seller additional amounts contingent upon the
renewal of certain expired franchise agreements acquired in the transaction. Under the agreement, the
Company will pay the seller $18,182 at the renewal of each expired franchise agreement up to a maximum
amount of $600,000. The present value of the contingent consideration at the acquisition date was
determined to be approximately $18,000. The Company has recorded this balance in other current liabilities
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Note 3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 20232024 and 20222023:

_ 20232024 2022202

3
Leasehold improvements $ $
628,035 1,384;4686
479417 28,035
Furniture and fixtures 135,16024Z774 247,77421640
2
Vehicles and equipment 73,506244483 214,183216:16
9
Software 634;561140,040 634,561
Construction in progress + 264731




56,746
2,884,299828,123 2,478,073881

299
Less: accumulated depreciation (243545533 _ (:8H0042,
0,496) 135,155)
497.627746:-144 746,14466706
9

Buildings under finance leases — net of accumulated amortization of
$440,471 and $371,106 and-$30+742-in 20232024 and 20222023, 1,709:8206 1779484
respectively 40,455 709.820
Property and equipment, net $ $
24559641 2,446:2534
38,082 55,964
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Note 3. Property and Equipment, Continued

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 20232024 and 20222023 was approximately
$402459,000 and

$451402,000, respectively, which includes approximately $69,000 of amortization expense related to
finance leases for the years ended December 31, 20232024 and 20222023.

Note 4. Contract Balances

Contract balances related to contracts with customers consist of receivables, deferred franchise costs, and
deferred revenue. See Note | for details on accounts receivable. The opening balance of trade accounts
receivable, net at January |, 20222023 was approximately $360812,000.




ranc mmnsmt of commissions and other direct costs relating to initial
mpmental agreements, and license fees for which revenue has not been recognized.
Deferred franchlse revenue (contract liability) represents that portion of the total revenue from initial franchise,
&ements attributable to services required to be provided by the Company that

have not yet been performed.

The opening balance of deferred franchise costs and deferred franchise revenue as of January |, 2022
was2023 were approximately $2,8841,954,000 and $8,4556.674,000, respectively.

Note 5.— Leases

The Company leases its warehouse facilities, studio, Company-owned gyms and office equipment under
operating lease agreements that mature between September2023October 2025 and December 2030. Some
leases include one or more options to renew, generally at the Company’s sole discretion, with renewal terms
that can extend the lease term up to 10 years. In addition, certain leases contain termination options, where
the rights to terminate are held by either the Company, the lessor or both parties. These options to extend
or terminate a lease are included in the lease terms when it is reasonably certain that the Company will
exercise that option. The Company’s operating leases generally do not contain any material restrictive
covenants or residual value guarantees.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, two operating leases for Company-owned gyms expired and one
additional operating lease on a Company-owned gym was terminated early in connection with closing of the
gym location.

The Company also leases its office facilities in Simpsonville, South Carolina under finance leases, which
including renewals, expire between March 2048 and July 2049. The interest rate implicit on these leases is
3.95%. The Company’s finance leases generally do not contain any material restrictive covenants or residual
value guarantees. The right-of-use assets associated with the Company’s finance leases are included as a
component of property and equipment, net on the accempanyaccompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Note 5. Leases, Continued

Operating lease cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Finance lease cost is
recognized as a combination of the amortization expense for the ROU assets and interest expense for the
outstanding lease liabilities, and results in a front-loaded expense pattern over the lease term. The
components of lease expense are as follows for the years ended December 31:




9Round FranchisingLLC

N c lid LFi ialStat . 2024 2023
Dﬁwd 2022
perating lease cost 3 268,064 $ 349,530
Finance lease cost —amortization of ROU assets 69,365 69,365

N Rence e ot aBEE TSt on lease liabilities 78311 79217
Variable lease cost 32,662 44,178
$ 448,402 $ 542,290

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2024 20232022
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash outflows — payments on operating leases $ 279,371 347,331%
$34733+ ——— 33543
6
Financing cash outflows — payments on finance leases $  100;626103,235 $
$ ——99227
100,626
Ri ¢ L : ioations:
Operating leases $ -8 28697

The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate at December 31, 2024 and
2023 and-2022-are as follows:

o . E
—lecoce—looooo
Operating Finance
Leases Leases
December 31, 2024:
Weighted-average remaining lease term 3.2 years 23.6 years
Weighted-average discount rate 5.35% 3.95%
December 31, 2023:
Weighted-average remaining lease term 4.0 years 24.6 years
Weighted-average discount rate 5.33% 3.95%
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5. Leases, Continued

Future undiscounted cash flows for each of the next five years and thereafter and a reconciliation to the lease
liabilities recognized on the balance sheet are as follows as of December 31, 20232024:

Operating Finance
Leases Leases
o . Fi
—Leases———Leases—
2024 $—294+482 $—103234
2025 264296 105299
2025 $ 254,203 $ 105,299
2026 218,280 107,405
2027 193,703 109,553
2028 19,413 111,744
2029 19.801 113,979
Thereafter 39.99820,197 2,709:934
595,955
Total lease payments +027472725,597  3,2471+69143,
935
Less current portion (224,217) (28,043)
Less imputed interest (403:82460,647) (1,253:8461
75,551
Fotal-present-value-ofLong-term $ 923:348440,733 §)
lease liabilities 1,.993:3239
40,341

Not|
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December 31,2023 an

mpani is taxed as a partnership under the provisions of Subchapter K of the Internal Revenue Code.
Consequently, federal income taxes are not provided for or payable by the Company. 9Round Franchising, LLC
Mﬁmturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and the various states in which it operates. 9Round
Franchising, LLC is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions. 9Round Franchising, LLC believes it is no
longer subject to income tax examinations for the years prior to 2020.

The Company is considered a non-resident in foreign jurisdictions and is subject to corporate withholding
taxes for payments of royalties and similar payments made by its foreign franchisees.

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, 9Round Franchising, LLC is required to disclose
uncertain tax positions. Income tax benefits are recognized for income tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return, only when it is determined that the income tax position will more-likely-than-not be
sustained upon examination by taxing authorities.

9Round Franchising, LLC has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service and all
state jurisdictions where it operates. 9Round Franchising, LLC believes that income tax filing positions will be
sustained upon examination and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material adverse
effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Accordingly, 9Round Franchising, LLC has
not recorded any reserves, or related accruals for interest and penalties for uncertain income tax positions at
December 31, 20232024 and 20222023.

9RFranchising Canada, ULC is taxed as a general corporation under the Canadian federal tax regulations, and
for the years ending December 31, 20232024 and 20222023, 9RFranchising Canada, ULC was subject to provincial
taxes. 9RFranchising Canada, ULC is solely owned by 9Round Attic Holdings, LLC, and as such, is
treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The activity of 9RFranchising Canada, ULC
is reported on the U.S. partnership income tax returns.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 6. Income Taxes, Continued

9RFranchising Canada, ULC files income tax returns in the Canadian federal jurisdiction. 9RFranchising
Canada, ULC is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions. 9RFranchising Canada, ULC is no longer
subject to income tax examinations for the years prior to 20492020.

The income tax expense consisted of the following for the years ended December 31, 20232024 and 20222023:

2023 2022
Current:
2024 2023
Current:
Foreign $ 6:493231,393 $
81786
493
Deferred:
Foreign e 28,7373
5,562
Income tax expense $ 42:055231,393 $
36,9154
2,055

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and income tax purposes.




i deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022 consisted of the

fol Iom:
Llete b lreerme 7
mote o Income 2024 2023 ——207 peleted Cells
Deferred tax asset: Inserted Cells
Deferred revenue $ 98.720- $ 456,29298,77
L Inserted Cells
Deferred tax liability:
Deferred franchise costs {79.272)- (+04:28279,272)
Net deferred tax asset $ 19.448- $ 55,01019,448

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, 9RFranchising Canada, ULC is required to disclose
uncertain tax positions. Income tax benefits are recognized for income tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return, only when it is determined that the income tax position will more-likely-than-not be
sustained upon examination by taxing authorities.

9RFranchising Canada, ULC has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Canadian Revenue Agency.
During 2022, the Canadian Revenue Agency assessed 9RFranchising Canada, ULC for failure to withhold under
Part XllIl of the Income Tax Act for the years 2015-2021. In connection with this assessment, the 9RFranchising
Canada, ULC has-recorded an accrual of $198,981 and-$188;243-as of December 31, 2023-and-2022respectively,
which is included in accrued expenses on the accompanylng consolidated balance sheees—An—e*pense—ef
$188213—wassheet. The Company recorded i a
sea{ement—eﬁepeﬁﬂeﬂs—md—eemweheﬁswean income tax paxable for%he#eaﬁended—Dec—embeHHQB—'Fhe

$211,945 as of December 31, 2024.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 7.—Related Party Transactions

The majority members of the Company own an interest in H&S Empire, LLC (“H&S”). The Company leases its
main office facilities from H&S under finance lease agreements (Note 56). During the years ended
December 31, 20232024 and 20222023, the Company made cash payments totaling approximately
$10+103,000 and-$99

$101,000, respectively, to H&S under these finance lease agreements. The Company also leases three studio
locations from H&S under operating leases. During the years ended December 31, 20232024 and 20222023,
the Company made cash payments totaling approximately $5+41,000 and $5051,000, respectively, to H&S
under these operating lease agreements.

At December 31, 20232024 and 20222023, the Company had receivables of approximately $21+43,000 and
$21,000, respectively, from related parties with common ownership. These amounts have been recorded in
current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as payment is expected within one year
from the consolidated balance sheet date.




Note 8. Summary of Franchises

The following is a summary of changes in the number of U.S. 9Round franchises during the years ended

December 31, 26232024 and 20222023:

Outlets in operation at beginning of year

Outlets opened during the year
Outlets terminated or closed during the year

Outlets in operation at end of year

Franchised outlets

Affiliate and company owned outlets

costs;-and-the-maintenance-of employee-and-compensation-levels—In-May-2022;-the -Small Business

20232024 20222023
3724279 4453
71
4 74
(948 (849
3) 6)
27920 3742
0] 79
275199 3652
75
41 64

Administration

The following is a summary of changes in the number of | Love Kickboxing franchises during the year ended

December 31, 2024:

Outlets in operation at acquisition on February 28, 2024

Outlets opened during the year

Qutlets terminated or closed during the year

Outlets in operation at end of year

There are no corporate owned | Love Kickboxing franchises.

Note 9.
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Nete-H-—Commitments and Contingencies

Various legal actions and claims which have arisen in the normal course of business may be pending against
the Company from time to time. It is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of these
contingencies will not have a material effect on the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of the
Company.

Additionally, it is reasonably possible that estimates made in the consolidated financial statements have been,
or will be, materially and adversely impacted in the near term as a result of these conditions, including losses
on inventory and impairment losses related to other long-lived assets.



i ion:ln March 2025, the Company closed one of its
office facilities and terminated the related party finance lease. Upon termination, the Company removed the
recorded balances of the finance lease right-of-use asset and lease liability, which amounted to
approximately $506,000 and $596,000, respectively. The Company's future obligations under this lease were
reduced by approximately $28,000 for 2025.

Effective April 11, 2025, the Company entered into a Unit Purchase Agreement to repurchase 40 membership
units from a single member for a total purchase price of $2,000,000. Of the total purchase price, $1,867,000
is allocated to the repurchase of the member units and $133,000 is allocated to the assignment of the
development and franchise rights for certain international territories held by the selling member. The Company
paid $1,800,000 at closing with the remainder of the total purchase price due in October 2025.

In connection with the Unit Purchase Agreement, the Company entered into a $1,440,000 note payable with a
financial institution to fund a portion of the purchase price. Amounts outstanding under the note bear interest
at a fixed rate of 6.75 percent. The Company is required to make monthly principal and interest payments of
approximately $12,700 until maturity in March 2029, when a balloon payment of all unpaid principal and
interest is due. The note is guaranteed by the remaining members of the Company.
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